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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of TERAPLAST S5A

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Teraplast SA (“the Company™) and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group) with official head office in Bistrita,
Romania, identified by sole fiscal registration number 3094980, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatery information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no. 2844/2016, approving the
accounting regulations compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards, with all
subsequent modifications and clarifications.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs),
Regqulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014
("Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014") and Law 162/2017 (.Law 162/2017"). Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (JESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to the audit of the financial statements in Romania, including Regulation (EU) Na.
537/2014 and Law 162/2017 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as

awhaole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in
that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements™ section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to

address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated fimancial statements.

Description of each key audit matter and our procedures performed to address the matter
1. Business combinations and purchase price allocation

In January 2018, Teraplast gained control over Depaco SA, which until this date it was
considered an associate, and as such Teraplast became the majority shareholder of the
subsidiary. From an accounting perspective, management recorded this transaction as a
business combination and assessed the consideration transferred as being the sum of the
consideration paid and the fair value of the purchase commitment for another 32% of the
subsidiary’ shares from the previous shareholders. Therefore, as at acquisition date, Group
management determined the percentage of ownership in Depaco to be 99%. The difference
between the consideration transferred and the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired,
as determined through a purchase price allocation report, resulted in the recognition of a
goodwill in amount of ROM 35 million.

We considered this a key audit matter because the transaction is significant to the
consolidated financial statements, judgment was invelved in the valuation of the acquired
assets and liabilities and on the purchase price allocation and the associated accounting was
complex.

Teraplast Group's disclosures regarding its accounting policy, judgments and assumptions
used for Business Combinations are included in Mote 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our audit procedures focused on the accounting for the business combination and on the

determination of the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired; for the latter, we involved our

internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating the key assumptions and methodologies
used by the Teraplast Group in allocating the purchase price. Our audit procedures in respect
of the acquisition of Depaco included, among others, the following:

» Read the sales and purchase agreement and the purchase commitment agreement and
other documents in relation to this acquisition to evaluate management's assessment that
the transaction falls within the business combination definition, as well as the acquisition
date,
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* Involved our IFRS specialists to assist us in evaluating compliance with IFRS 3 requirements
pertaining to fair valuation;

»  Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external valuation expert used
by the Group;

* Analyzed the assessment made by the management and the appraiser when recognizing
and measuring the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed;

* Analyzed the methodology used by the external valuation expert and validated by
management in order to determine its compliance with valuation standards;

* Tested on a sample basis the mathematical accuracy of key computations observed within
the valuation report prepared by the independent appraiser;

*  Evaluated management's assessment of the fair value of consideration transferred;

*  Ewvaluated the key assumptions and estimates (such as: revenues, costs, growth rates,
operating margins, working capital needs and the capital expenditure) used to determine
the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including the determination of
the market values and discount rates;

*  Analyzed management's assessment of the existence of contingent consideration payable
arising from the transaction and, if applicable, its measurement;

»  Evaluated the accuracy and completeness of the management’s computation of goodwill
generated by the transaction.

We have further assessed the adequacy of the disclosures about the business combination in
the consolidated financial statemenis.

2. Recoverability of the carrying value of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
goodwill

Teraplast Group manufactures various plastic and metal components for the construction
industry and consequently operates significant property, plant and equipment with a carrying
value of RON 215 million as at 31 December 2018, The financial year 2018 was affected by
the lack of significant infrastructure projects in Romania, which was not fully offset by private
construction activity, therefore the Group's results were lower than the management's
expectations.

As at 31 December 2018 the management identified that impairment indicators exist for some
of the Group's CGUs and performed separate impairment testing in respect of the following
CGUs: PVC and polyethylene pipes and PVC profiles with a related total carrying value of
property, plant and equipment of RON 91 million, resulting in no impairment loss being
recognized.

The impairment test is significant to our audit due to the size of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, with a carrying value representing 32.1% of the balance sheet total assets as at
31 December 2018 and because the assessment process is complex, requires significant
management judgment and is based on assumptions that are affected by expected future
market conditions in Romania and surrounding countries. The assumptions include forecasts
of sales volumes and prices, cost of raw materials and overall construction market and general
ecanomic conditions.
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Also, according to IFRS, goodwill should be tested for impairment any time impairment triggers
are identified, but at least annually. The impairment test over the goodwill resulted from the
business combination of Depaco was significant for our audit because the assessment process
is complex, it requires significant estimates and management judgement and is based on
assumptions derived from the future evolution and the results of this subsidiary.

The Group's disclosures about property, plant and equipment, goodwill and related impairment
assessment are included in Note 3 (Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions), Note 13 and
Mote 12 (Property, Plant and Equipment) to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

» we obtained the analysis performed by management and evaluated the key assumptions
underlying management's assessment of potential impairment of the cash generating
units;

* we analyzed the methodology used by management to assess its compliance with [AS 36
for the method applied (value in use);

» we tested the mathematical accuracy of the impairment model used;

»  we assessed the historical accuracy of management's budgets and forecasts by comparing
them to actual performance;

*  we evaluated the Group's key assumptions and estimates used to determine the discount
rate, the future operating cash flows, the growth rates, operating margins, working capital
needs and the capital expenditure;

» we involved our valuation specialists to assist us in the evaluation of key assumptions and
estimates used by the Group, including the determination of the discount rates. We also
evaluated whether or not certain assumptions on which the valuation was based,
individually and taken as a whole, considered: i) the economic environment of the industry,
and the Group’s economic circumstances; i} existing market information; iii) the business
plans of the Group including management's expectations; iv) the risks associated with the
cash flows, included the patential variability in the amount and timing of cash flows and the
related effect on the discount rate; v) specific requirements of IFRS.

»  we performed a sensitivity analyses for the discount rates applied and the assumptions for
revenue levels adopted and considered the information used to derive the most sensitive
assumptions

*  \We further assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures about the impairment testing
of property, plant and equipment and goodwill in the financial statements.

Other Information

The other information comprises the Consolidated Administrators’ Report which includes the
Mon-Financial declaration but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Corporate responsibility and sustainability report will be
published separately. Management is responsible for the other information.
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Qur audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially incansistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated
financial statements in accordance with the Order of the Minister of Public Finance no.
28442016 approving the accounting regulations compliant with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, with all subsequent modifications and clarifications, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

E

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriatenass of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors® report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manmner that achieves fair
presantation,

QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safequards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefare the key audit matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Reporting on Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Our
Auditors' Report Thereon

In addition to our reporting responsibilities according to 1SAs described in section "Other
information™, with respect to the Consoclidated Administrators' Report, we have read the
Consolidated Administrators’ Report and report that:

a) inthe Consclidated Administrators” Report we have not identified information which is not
consistent, in all material respects, with the information presented in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2018;

b) the Consolidated Administrators” Report identified above includes, in all material respects,
the required information according to the provisions of the Ministry of Public Finance Order
no. 2844/2016 approving the accounting regulations compliant with the International
Financial Reporting Standards, with all subsequent modifications and clarifications, Annex
1 points 15 - 19;

¢) based on our knowledge and understanding concerning the entity and its environment
gained during our audit of the consclidated financial statements as at December 31, 2018,
we have nof identified information included in the Administrators’ Report that contains a
material misstatement of fact.

Other requirements on content of auditor's report in accordance with Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council

Appointment and Approval of Auditor

We were appointed as auditors of the Group by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 21
September 2017 to audit the consolidated financial statements for the financial years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2018. Total uninterrupted engagement period, including previous
renewals (extension of the period for which we were originally appointed) and reappointments
for the statutory auditor, has lasted for 2 years, covering the financial years ended December
31, 2017 and December 31, 2018,

Consistency with Additional Report to the Audit Committee

Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements expressed herein is consistent
with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we issued on 21
March 2019,
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Provision of Non-audit Services

Mo prohibited non-audit services referred to in Article 5(1) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014
of the European Parliament and of the Council were provided by us to the Group and we remain
independent from the Group in conducting the audit.

In addition to statutory audit services and services disclosed in the Consolidated
Administrators' Report and in the consolidated financial statements, no other services were
provided by us to the Company, and its controlled undertakings.

On behalf of,

Ernst & Young Assurance Services SRL
15-17, lon Mihalache Blvd., floor 21, Bucharest, Romania

Registered in the electronic Public Register under Ma. 77

Mame of the Auditor/ Partner: Alexandru Lupea Bucharest, Romania
Registered in the electronic Public Register under No. 273 15 April 2019
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TEFRAPLAST 5A
CONEQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMEMY
for the financial yvaar ended 31 December 20416

el enaunty Sre exnrsssi b Bamanian Laf (RO, onlesa ofbersiae sistsdt
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TERAPLAST 54

MOTES TQ THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year anded 31 December 2018

fuil armounis are prprassed i Romanan Lef (FON], unfoss titenitss siebec:

1. FENERAL INFORMATHIN
These are %o consolidatad financial statamants of e Teraplati B4 Graup (the *Group).

Torzmast 54 (e "Parent) is a jain: siock compary establishad In 1982, The Company's hesd offce 2 in
the  Taraplast Industrial Parr", 0N 1448 {Raghin-Bisrits), km 45+500, Bstrita- Magaus Gounty, Raman:a.

Starfing 2 July 2006, the Company Taeraplast is listed at the Bucharest Stack Cxchangs wrdar the aym aol
TRP.

The Teraplest 54 company has been prepannd conaFidated fnancial slatemants shica 2007 Thzse
financis| stataraents are avaiabke on the Company website feeteraalasirg).

The Teraplzet Group includes Teraptost (produces of nipes. grandles and PYVC profilea), the sube diaries
Terastesl Bistlta and Terasteel Serbia (producer of sandw:ch panels and zincate matallic structures).
Teraglass {producer of PYC windows and dears), Terapiast Legists {duning Jure 2016 - Sepiember 2015,
it bzt caardinated the logistic actvitlas of $ie Group; steding Cotabet 2018, tkz activity was s2intenratad
int fhe parent). Teraglagt Hungary (diswibutar), Pollfeb S8 (an 31 Becember 2017, the Pofitut buginsas
was trahsforred to Teraplast SA, tharatore secoming e Palyethylena Dhvislon), anG ihve [lepeco Comozny
i proxluoar of metetic ikes). More details on the Group ctresture are presented in Note 15.

'm March 2007, the Gompany becams e majorty sharabeldar of Terasteesl SA (Terasteal). Teragtzel
“nair, activity i3 ihe praducton of hear naulatng panalzs with polyurethane form far the casstruckon of
warehouass, Siafing 31 December 215, the persartage hzld by Teraclast 34 n Tarasteel SA i3 97355,

The Company halds ancther supsitany, Teraclass Blstdia SRL, having a5 scaps of ousiness the productan:
anc trading of wingdews arnd daors i PYC and slueninum. In March 2015, Teraplagt SA transfemad the
aciivity of produciian and rading of hest insulated glass, windows and dears in PG and aluminum o
Teragle=ss Bistrita SRL.

Or 28 Mewember 2045, fne Board of Diractors appreved thraugh 3 Decision, Teraslast SA's parlcipation
as a sharsholdar in the sading of & imied-liabiily cormpany in Romanis: Tefapiast Legietiz SRE. Terapiast
Sa's investnen! @ this compeny = 99%. Stading Octoder 20928, the Group's logisie activitr waz
reintegrated Into the Farent.

O 29 Seprember 2046, by Decision of the Beard of Birectors, the parkQipadion ol Teraplast as the sole
sharanclder in the setting of a limtad-iabillty company in Hungery was approved.

Teraplast Hungary distibutes the Compeny pracucts, malrly joineny profilas, on this readet.

Starting 2015, Teraplsst SA 18 a sharenolger of & legal antity seqstered in the Republic sf Moldava.
Taraplast Group Maodova, with a sharehelding 512,

In 2017, the Board of SHractors approved e assignmant af the Comozny shares in Teraplast (Group)
Maldovs to the atkar zhareholders of this company, at their rominal valee #M0OL 2,754,

Tha ragults of 2018 refag ihe Investments made retaied 1o 2017 Terastes! Doo {Serbia), Depecc and
Palinb.

In Jaruazy 2917, the Board of Direetars approved the sehing of a subsidiary (100% holding of Teraplast
5&] i Serpia. Umil 30 Juna 2017, the Company called-up and paid it sl share capiial emowning to
b LFI 10,000

Starting Octabee 2017, Following the aeguisiion of production assets fmam a company undergaing
liquidatcn, Terasteel Serkia producas and trades palyumetnana foam sardwic panals in Serbi and on tha
naighbaring markeaes.

E:gls braralabor & for farnabon cursesess Galy. Remanlan langiraca toxc is e officiai 18 299 2:0bmilesalan. Eebom elonet —
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TERAPLAST 5A

HOTES TO THE COMSQLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the financkal year endad 31 Docomber 2018

el Amnunls ars evprossed il Rordmian Lel MRONTD. walees rierisa sizled)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION {continued)

Buring 2017, Hhe Ssug concledent sgreements for 1he acgulremeant of 7% of Depace, ths second oaver
it the mmetallis file masket, through e Weiterbest rand. TeraPlast galned contisl sver Gepeza in January
218, ftar & faverable approva: lssoed by the Comostition Cousncl. Az at 31 Dezsmaer 2017, Depaco i
jrintly contreles »ith the other sharehaldess, tharafars, the comaany is consolldated under the aglity
method, The Depaco 3RL cwnpany is cansaildated as a gubsidiary atzring January 01 5.

A In 201 ¥, Terap:ast sipned s sale-purchase promlsa agsearaent with tha minor sharehelders of Depaco
for tha aciJisition of tha rest of skair invesinant up to 99% of the cotipany. The ransaction will be finalized
in 4 yoars al nost, at e priee rorrglsted with Depaco'a results in the foilowing yeads. For ferther details, sze
nats 3.

Tre aoqiigitions continued wiin Ine Skesar of Palituh, one of the most inzportant plavers o0 the watar gne
nas pipee et which became mofuli padt of tha TeraPlest pedfeiio starting Ocrober 2017, Startng
Decamber 207, Politud transferred the business 10 ToraPlas d= a whole, and it decams e Polyelhyisnn
Fipe Divisicn of Taraslast.

Unbl September 2017, the Conspary haid 50% of the shases of Polick SA CPoliub®}, comtroliing Palitub
joindly with tha ettee shetshalder, New Socctun. Therefore, until 30 Sagtembar 2317, Pailfub waz a jain
wEnturg, conaotidated undar Lha aguity methad. In August 2017, the Company boughé from Mew Socotub
48.949% af dha MMglieh ghares, for EUR 2 6 milltdon. O 28 Septamnba; 2017, the Sompany recalved the
Cempetitloh Soussil appioval for the sale control over Politul; 38 a meult, Peiluk is consclidated starng
1 Ockobei 2017, Az 8¢ 31 Dacambar 2017, the Poliiub businesa was bouzant by the Company.

Palitub SA 5 mali aclivilias includs the production: of bipes fram average ang hegh dasity poladylense for
wihar, gas fransport end distribufon nebwodks, DUt akso for telecornmuonications, sewerags systems or
irfgations.

Z. SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POELIGLIER
A, SIGMIFICANT ACCOLNTING POLICIES
21, Safement of complianca

Trie consoldatad financ-al ttalamants of the Sroup have been prepaired in accordarce with tha provigicns
of Order no. 284420168 appraving the Accaunting reguketions comptiant with the Irternagdonat Financlal
Reporting Siendards spplicatte o frading cemparlad whosa 2equriies sre edmited to srading on &8
regulsiad mariel s5 elbeequerty amended and Slgiifad JOMFR 2842202015, Thase piyvlsioons ane
compllard with: tha presveslons of the Internationzl Financial Repatierg Standasds adopted by the Eurcpasn
Lin:zn ["EU IFREY. @xcapt for b provisions of 145 21 The effecte of changes in fareign aXchanga roics
ceinceming the fungtional cumency.

For the pumpoae of greparlry thasa Enahciat statemerts accarding to the Romanian legal provizicns . ha
Gimpany & funciional pumensy i9 corsidaras bo ba fhe Rarsanian Leu (SON?,

The funciions] cusrency, which mflests the subsiance of the concerned events and relevant circurasta ness
far Toraplagt S8, Plastsiatern 54, Terag'ass Blziita SR and Podlitub 54 it the Romanisn Lau MROMN". The
fur-stional currercy for Teeaplasi Hyngary is the Hungarian Fonint (T 1UFE"). and for Taraztael Sarbia i tha
Serian Dinar ("B307.

Linitl 1 July 2004, Somaniz was considarad a hyparinflatlonasy acorsmy sccording to the citeria of 185 29
Financial Repciting i Mypaniiatenany Ecomomies, n aocordance with the provisins in W43 29, 1he panan®
has dscentinued sthe aaplication of 145 20 as of 1 January 2004.

These firancial siEtementa are presonted in Remanian Le: ["RON" sniess othemlse speifioslly smtad

eno-ch rarslalon & fInfennatdn Aursosns any, Bomaniss anguege el 2 1ha arklal tear for aubiniezian. (158 weg i s, 1t
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TERAPLAST SA

NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year endad 31 December 2018

{58 amownts are e3TvEs=ed in Rormanign Led CRON. ek alferaies sfatso)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES {continusd)
2,2 Baszis of accounting

Tha firaqcial sistements have bean preparad on @ going conoenn basis, accarding o the hlstoriced cost
cenvention adjusted ke tha afects of hypariniiation until 31 Dacember 20705 for ixad sssets, share oapitas
and resenes. sxcapt For cartain ilems of Tkad assets and irvestinent prepery, es presemied in the Mates.
The mair aczounling poficies ars prassnted below.

2.1 Gaing canGern

Thasa finarcial slatements have Been prepsred under e gaing concem bass. which implies that e
Compary will continue its activity also in the foreseaabia fotre. In arder to as5ess the applizrhilty of this
assumption, mansgemant analyzes the forecasts conceming futufe cash endows.

A ot 4 Decembar 2HE, the Group current assets exceed tha current kegilities by RON 75,191,194 {as of
54 Decarmber 2047 RN 58,544,171 In 2018, Ew Sicup eecordad preft RON 2,638,708 (2097 prafi
ROM 12 586 337, As datlled in Note 28, tha Group geaning ratio s 42% (37 Degambar 2017 33%), The
CGroup depends o financing barks, a& skec described in Nota 23,

The budget prapated by the Group management and eparaved by the Seard of Adralrlstration for 2018
Indicates postve cash flows fam operating Bctiviies. an incremse in salss and wrofimbilty whilch
contriputes diractly to impraving Housdity and atiows the Group to fulfil s colttractus! slaeses with the
Snenaing banks. Group maragement belizwes that the auppet from banes s suffisient for e Group to
cantinue ila activity in the ardinary coures of BUSINesa. A5 8 QoI COOCEM

Eased an these enalyses, managemen: beliavas that tne Company will be ahle ta cantinue it aetivity in
the toreseesble futdra and, corsequantiy, the applisation ab the going cencera principle in e preparatian
of 1y finangial s@tements is justiflad.

Bazis for consalidation

The Gnancial stalements campeise the financia statement of the Parent and o its subsldlares as 2!
31 Dacember 2015, Contrel is achizwed when the Group is 2xposed, or hes righis, io variable returns frem
s invalvement with the imvestas and has e ability to affest those retumz through s powsr JWVer Ihe
investea. Specfizally, the Group conirots an investes if, and only If, the Group hes:
v Power aver the ineestes (e, exising rights that give it the currend abllity to girect e ralevant
arilvitias af the invesies);
= Exposure, aF rights, m vadable retums frerm e involwernant with fie nvesEs,
The ability t0 use it power ovar the vestee th affect ks retams.

Genarally, thers is a prasumpion that 3 mapxity of voting rights reauli in control. To suppor this
prasumpion ard whan the Group has kss thar @ majeity of e voling or simllar rights of an invectas. the
Group srns<ders ali relevant facts and coumstancas I assessing whethal It hag powar aver aq Investee,
imgiidizig:

v Tha conlractusl arancemant with e giter vote holdess of the invasies,

+ FRights ansiog from other contractual arrsngements:

+ The Graup's voting riohiz and potential vatlng rlahts.

THe Geoup re-aasesses whethar or nof it cantrols an investee if facts art ciroumstances indicee that Hare
are changes Lo one o mora of the three eterents of cortrol. Sonsatidator: of 2 subeldiany beging when the
Group obtains control aver the subsidiary and ceases whan tha Group lasee eentrol of the subsldiary.
Aneels . liabilifiss. Inseme snd expanses of @ subsidiary acguired or dispasad of diring ihe financsai year
are intcluded in 110 consolidatad financial statemeants frarm e date the Group gains contral usitll the date
the Grouvp ceagas to control the subsidiany.

Erglish translarice ia fr IEation pul paBss oy Fnrarcar WrgUBge Ler iz the ol tax for gubmizsar. | e |
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TERAPLAST 54

NOTES 7O THE CONSOQLIPATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the floanciad year anded 31 December 288

jall smounts gre expsegaed in Romenfas Led PRON uniss oftsmise saten)

2. SUNMMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT AGCOUNTING FOLICIES icontinmed)

Mroftar lo8s aro gach comparent of olhar comprabensia incame ate atribeted to the equity noleers of
the parant gac to the non-controiling intaveats, sven if $ug rosuls in ke non-eontraling interests having a
doficd balarce Whet necessady, adiustments ars reade to the firaackal stalanents of subsHianes o arng
tnair accounting polebas lats ina with tha Gredp'a aeecungng padcies, A intra-group e3sete and lialillos,

gquity, incoms. axpenses and cash flows ralatitg to fransacfions heteean members of the Groun are
eiminated in fu!l 20 censolidation.

& chakga in the awnerenip interest of a subsidizry, withow: a loss of contrl, |s accaurtzd for a= ar squity
Lrarzactian.

IF the Grolp les2e ciateol aver a sdbsidiary, it dzrecognizes the rafated assats {including goacwill,
limall s, aen-conrolling inferest and other componerts of equity whise any rasaliant gam or loss Is
recogalzact m fralit o loss. Any irvestrment retained s recognized at fair watus.

Eirzinezs cambinafinhs

ihe purchases of bueinesses arg accounted for by using the Acguisidon mathed The cansidesstion
transferred in & businass eembivatan i meassured ai fair valee, which is computad 33 the sem betwaen
th2 fair wakies at the purchase daie of the assets transtrred by e Compeny, the liabifities regiswered by
the Company toveerda the former owners of the abtainad antity snd the invesinents in the equitias issued
by iR Compsny in exchenge for the confrod over the sotalned antity. The costs elated o e pumkase e,
i geteral, tecagnized in proft or lass when inoumed,

85 o0 e purchasa sata, the purchaged idantifiable 338ele and the undetaken liabitities are recognlzed at
heir feir vrlue ot she perchage date,

Gaodwill i3 meagered as the positive diffarence batwaar tne tranefared consldaratian. the value of any
hon-Zentralking inferests im the ghteine entity arnd the fair value at the dae of purchasing the invastrem
in vz 2gusties greviously hakd by the obtainer in ke abteined artity (if anyt, and the ret vatues at tha fata
¥ purchasing e idantifishe gesets surchased and e lizblities undertaken, i the differerce mendoned
ancye i3 negative, |15 moegnizad @0 prafit a¢ Ioes 32 gains fram purcnaze under advantagequs conditons

Men-cantmilling irtzras:s which rearesent ivestments in equizy 2nd entite the holders to a propartonal
gharz of e antity's nai asssts (0 cazse of liguidatan car be measured pither eccording to the fair vaue ar
acarding o e proportcnal shame of tha nen-contredling intarests and the racagnized values of tha nal
aszate af the obtai~ad entity, The messurement basig is chosen depandlr-g on tha transaction. Oihes trpes
uf nor-tonfraling irtareals are rmeagured &t feirvalue or, when applicab’a, according to tha basis spooied
0 otner IFHE standards. When the carsidergtion transfarred by the Group in g business sombinstan
TCILOES 335IF OF FASINIEE Ietdlizd Wit & Comittibtard wil v vuntingen! o piderdiiua, e gk gt
crsidaralior ik meesured at the dzir waive al the data of pucchase and i |2 Included as o part of the
corsidaration transfarred in g business comoination. The amendments b tha falr vama of tha cantirgant
consideradon which ane qualified &= edjugtmenis of the measurement pedod are adjusted setroackivsiy
oagsEd On goodwit. The adlustments of the maasweremant pasiod ane edjuasments that arise fram addifioral
miarration during the "measuremcnt gefad” (whick caanet fuoceed 3 yeer from ina purghese date)
conce<ning the facls and cirgumstances exdating i the date of purchase.

Tha sunsequeni AooOuntng of the chamgas i fair valbe of the geatirgent conaigeration which s not
neiuded I e adjustments orthe azaessment period dapemdz on tha mannsr Ibewscak: itis classflled, Tha
sortingent consxleralicn claselfiad as equity is not reveiued at subsecuent reporing dakes and ita
sUDsEqUent discountng i acocountad tar in eguitles. The sontingert consideradion classified as asssg or
lability & reva’usd &t subsequent reporing dakes In accordanca with IFRS 9, tha somesponding galn o
033 22ing recognized i profit or lasa

Erglish tanslmicn |3 far wiomallsn parso8ss uwnly. ROManlan arguags bl & e Pioal b for aLtmission.
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TERAFLAST SA .

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the firancial year ended 3 December 2018

(ol ermouints 202 caprasead in Romanken Lel "ROMY, unlses oftswise siated)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

WhEn 3 ousiness commbinatian is performad in stages, the inuesiment Into the equities ketd previcusly by
tne Company In the obtained entzy is remeasured a5 fair valua at purchase dete {i.e the Group ohisins
soniraly 0o the resutted galng or losses, I any, I8 recognizsd it profit and loss. The values resuling from
irterssiz in e enity cotained prio: te ihe dawe of purchase which were pravaushy resognized in otiver
comerateasive incoma are reclagsiied it profit and loss aa %ie same basis thal would be requared i© the
obtalaer had direttly disposed of tha praviausly beld invasinent in EqLIitias.

I the: initial Geeenting of a husiness combingden is Incomplets st ine ard af the repaiing pedod when the
aenbinafion tekes place. the Sompany reporta temiparady values for the dams for whish the stcounting is
incomplete. These temporary vaives are adjusted durng ke masiement pariod [see gbave). ar additior a:
gssete o lighilities are recognized, o reflect the mew information ohbtained concerning the facts and
ciicuinstances sxisting at the cate of purchase which, if ecognized, wouid have infivenzed e values
cacanized at the respective date.

Goodwill

The gl genarated By & businass corbination & accourtad for at cost a3 determninsd at the purchese
cgie minus e curnulzted impaliment lseses, Ifany, For tha purpase of the impamnent test. the gocedwit 5
allacalad 1o each cash generaing unit of e group (or o the groups of sash generating enite) whish are
avpectad to nenafit from the cambination’s synarzles. A cash genarating unit jhat was distibutad goadwil
is tassed arndally for impalreent or more oftan when dhere is a0 indication that tha unit Tay De impairad. |f
the eeoverahie valua of the cesh ganaratng wnit 15 lower Ya2n its bopk vaiua. the impairment i aliacated,
tirsl of 2l to caciease the baok value of any goodwll allocetad ta the und 2nd then to tha ziver unii sssats,
propartacally 1o fna book valee af sach asset in e unit Ady goadwill impsirae Ik recagnized dlezcty in
arofit #nd logs in the gansolidated income staternent antt In cemprehensive income, The mpalmen
recoanized or goadvsl cannat be reversed in the Following pericds,

At the sele date of the rebavant cash generating unit, he attibutable value of gocdwill is inctuded *n
daterminmg the geins of losses from the sake

Intanglbte assets purchased in & business combination

intangible Rssete purchased 3s part of 2 buginess carnbinagiion snd reangnized se garateiy fram the goodwill
are Teaagrized indily at their faic valus sl the puchass cata [which i considersd es thedr cost).
Subsanguent to initiel racognition, intang lble assets purchased as part of a business comolnatan are
aresentad ar oot minks $he curnclated deprepistion and the cumylatad i men ioes ar te same besis
a8 intzngible assets fnat ara purchased sepasataly.

Derecognition of lntangible assats
An intangible aseet s demcognized upat dispozal ar when no athat futuTe econamic bensfits ans expected
ki be ohtained fom s Jse or dispasal, Gaing or lesses eeuted from fhe daracognition of an infargible
aszet, measuras a3 difference debween tha net recaipls o the saiz and the nook value of the assal ane
recognizad In profit ang loss.
2.4, Standerds, amendments and new interpretations of the standards

A1 First time adoption of new of revised standards

e acoourting policies adopted are corsigtent with thase of the previous Aoancizl year sJcept for e
following smended [FRS which have been sdapted by the Lompeny as af 1 January 2043

The Group has adepied IFRS 9 Fnancigl lnstuments and IFRS 15 Revenus from Cantracts with
Custarets (neiuding the clarficatons? for tha flest ime swring with 1 January 2016, The lnpact af hese
standards & described k the mlluwing paragraphs.

Engiish ranslalon i 6r Infomation purpeese pnh. Romanian language 18115 1ha offical bt for aubmizglan. |z, -.w.-;w';f-m:amm..
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TERAPLAST 34
HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS
far the financial year ended 31 December 2018

2. BUNMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conkinLicd)
it adilitlan, the GmoUE hes adopied he Sallowitg stardads win inii pt application steting 1 January 2015

= IFRS & ClogsHication and Measurement of 3hare based Paymeat Transactions {Anendments}

The amendrmenis grovide requirements on the accounting fiar tha effecs of vesting and non-wesdng
conditionz cn the measurement of cash-settled share-bazed pavments, for sharcsbasad payment
Irafsactionz wilr 2 net sevlement feature for withlizding lax obligaticns and for medificallars 1o the
Mg ardd coaditions of B 2hsre-based peymant that changas the cassification: of the transaction fom
cash-geliled to aquity-seitled, Manegement hos agdeased that this atendard hasz no impact on the
Groups fnansial statements, e the share-baged paymant exclusively depends on the parfomancs
griar e granting tRe shares: the granting is not revooable.

v 1A5 40: Transfars bo Investment Proparty {amendments)
‘The amendmante cladhy whar aa enty shedld transier propeny  [Acluding propety under conatnistion
ar deglapimant 1o, & aut af Invesirment prapay. The amendments zigte that 8 change in use oocurs
vihen the propery meeis. ar ceazes o mest, the defnitan of invastment proparty and thera j5 evidaroe
@' the change in URe. A mare change in MENapament's irentions for e use of & propety does not
povkds avidance of & change I uta. Managamant has asaesssd thin stendsrd wili not have an masct
an e Group's Arancial steftemenis.

« [FRIC 22 INTERPRETATION: Forekgn Currancy Transactions and Advance Considaration

The interpretation clarfies the acocunting for trensactons tat indude the receipt or payment of advance
ouegicieratan in a foraign currency. The inferpretation eddresses trensactions in foreign curercy for
which the ertity recoanlzes a prepavnent assel ar a deferred income bablily :n raespest of thas
soslderaliog, in advanss of the easgnitlon of the releted aseet, axpense of income. The Interpretatian
pravides thaf IEs date of she rareadtion. for the purpoese of detemilrirg the exchange rate, s the date
of inftigl mecogaition of the non-monatary prapaymant essat of deferad incona ligbility. If thara are
muyhiple gaymerts o receipts in advance, a date of wanaactizn 12 established by $he entlty for each
payrmant of sesaipt Tha Group s orackiza was comaliant with e interpretation and, consetugrdly, it hae
ng effects on the finanoal sistormeats.

r The IASE haz ksued the Annual Improvemeitis bo IFREs 2014 — 2006 Gycla, whizh & a caliestion
~f amendmenis tc IFRLSa,

= |AE 28 Long-term (mtersats i Assaciates and Joint Ventures [Antandmentsi: The
Arnenamerts clarfy thai the opton to measure at fair valua through prafi end 1983 an Invesimant
i 2n associate gr in & icint venture whiich ig held by an antlty representing & Joint vonture or oy
arather ently hal gualifes iz availeble for each investment Ik an associate or [oint veture for
exch separate [nvestmen: uaon inlkiat soeognition.

+« |FRE 9 Financial Ingtrumenis
The flnal versiar of iFRE 8 Firancial fnatrumenis reflects 24 phases of the flnancial instrumoms projest

HHF?EPIEGEE FAG 33 Fiancia) fndtromets: Recqomition asd \eeasiremant and all previous verdions of
IFRE B,

[FRS 9 brings slgnlflcant changes conpeming the recognilion and assessment of the fnanclal assots,
which are based on e ousiness medel ard an ihe charactaretica of the contractual cash flows 2ael
hay alga imalament & mew mocel soncerning the recogndion of adjusieients for impairriont bdsed an
e expectsd] fosses from recalvablas.

[FR3 9 was applled using the iritial simplified spolocatan cpbon. As it was allowsd by IFRS 2, Tarapiast
dirs gt Enend tha Agres in t4e prior perind, whigh continee to b reported sccording to 1AS 39 Since
e tranaition to IFRS 9 did rot have & matarial :maect, the Srmoug did not regond an Rojusiment of the
iniuak balante far fhe Felsted poaition in equlties as of 1 January 201E.

-

| C ‘7'1-'1'0":“.'-1.'.-‘.F|F.+~:;5=||

15 &R 20

ikn- f [eene
L;nﬂiw';- R

——— 1Tk

Englisk ramalabon ie fo- irde:raticn parecsas aFy Bomenlan [argusge 1esxl e U celial sk For auEmistlon

i3



TERAFLAST SA

NOTES TO THE CONSQOLUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEWMENTS

{or the financial year anded 31 Docomber 2016

Al amoonds A% RYDTESTL Romanian Lef (MRONE unigss cihsrmss Siéfed)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES {continued)

IFRS 9 presens thies main satagores of financial ass=ts: tmaagured at amorized cost, maasured at
fair value hraugh other comprenensive: items and measurad 2t air vaius th-ough. prafi and oss

Tha categories ane dejermined according ko the follzeing twe oriteria: the Sompanys Business made
ased in the process of managing e Assels and the analysis of tha confactue! cash Hows gf 19e
inshiumerts to daarming if dhey represent anly payments af the pring pal and of the interest reletad o
the principal

a8 explained 0 he nofes beicw, there ara bo matzrlal dlifererces batween g irltial messurement
caveqaries as per IAS 30 ard the new measnemarit caenories acnarding to IFRS B for the Group's
aatagorien of fnancial assete as of 1 January 2015,

According te 145 39, all trade recevables wers goaounted for at emartized cosk rirus adjustrments for
impsirment There was ao imoact on the Grouo's ralalinesd earnings generaied by the ciessificaton
accarding k> [FRS &.

The mahs granisd 10 suhsidiarios are asaessad at amorized cost tagoarding to the effzetive intersst
rate methadl munus adjustmants for impalimeart. After the appication of IFRS 9, loans ale meazurod
accarding o the business madei the objectiva af which is ta grant logns in arder to collect contractual
=azh flows which represent anly reimbursemerts of pi nepal and interest on tha prinkips: on balance.
Consequenily, thers Wwas no imosdst from the clasemication and messiremant of ars granted to
subsidiarias.

Interosls hatd in subediarios, assosistes and Jolnt venturas are accountad for @t cost mlaug any
impairmant k1gs acoarding 1o |AS 27 Separate Hranciai stemmants. Interests kewd in othar imvastmenta
are designated ta be measurdd at fair velua thrcugh ethar eomprenensive Income. Thers was no impact
=N the Company's equitias from the lassiication ar measurgrment af aquity investmerts.

Thara Iz na impact on the reeegniion and meaasuremant af ¥1e Company's financial assas due o e

fars that the sew reguirsmeants refer anly to the amtawning af fingackal abilities desighatzd e being
re:gisterad at fair velus through profit ard koas. Tha Growp does nat have sush llzkdities.

The raw impaimment model pecvldes that the adjustments fsr irnp@irment S8 recognized accatding o
the axpected losses from raceivables end mot accesding o the paodel of effecliva osses from
recaivables. as provided by 1AS 39 According to IFRS 8. e GSMup recognizas adjusmaents far
impsirment accarding to the exnestad logses for the instniments which £ nat apnounted fov at fair
value ‘hrough profit 2nd icss ard For he contractusl asses resLlting fram: shent cortracts. 19 gerersl,
anplying the made] goncaralag the expacted jogaes fremn recanehios smplies tha eady Fegistration of
Inz5es frorn recefvanlas far the relevant itams. Logsas from reseivablas ae calculated based on a tires-
stege madel, uzing credit risk swapn, marnal ar gxtemal counterparty ratings and the ralated pratatility
of default. For certain firancial instumenia, such as trade eaeivabes, impairmeant tngzes arg estimared
bazad on 3 sirepified spproazh, recognizing expecied losges from recsivables during thair useful lie.
Tha relaied impact, net of ireeme e, o0 Groop equlles following e Initizl spplication of iIFRS B 1= of
FOM 0,51 millizn (g2e Nate 18).

Aoeoiding @ IFRS &, several risk badging instuenents and sevaral hedged risks will generaily misat the
spplicaton condidons of the hedge sscountng. As of 31 Degember30t? and, respactively,
31 Dacamber 2018, tha Group did net hold any rtk hedging instruments for which o aonly hiedee
accauniing sensaguantly, thers it ne impact ¢n the financka! sttemarts fromn tha appllcaton of IFRS &
ah Necige aecouning.

Englisk wranalalian b far informetian nurgu:& E'-nlg.-. AamEnizn gl e i tng officids e for aﬂ:mi:.s.lm.
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TERAFPLAGT 5A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the Anancial year énded 31 Decatnimt 2018

(A arnelila 419 pxgreszed i Ranenian Lo { RO, unlesy tiianwiss sfeig

2. SUMBARY OF SIGMIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

« [FRE 15 Fevane From Contracts with Custamers

IFFS 15 iz apoloanle stading 1 Jenurry 2018, the appicatien procts thls date also being penmitted.

Tke Standend replaces

185 11 Constructsn contraobs,

185 15 Hovende,

IFRIC 37 Cusiomar Isyalty prayrams,

IFRIC <8 Agreemeds for the constructior of real estaets;

IFRIC: 53 Transfars of aesett frar cusioemears; and

SIC-31 Bevenus ~ Barter transactions imvowing edvertising aarvines.

4 & % & ¥ =

Tre obiective of ke siandard |5 Kk establish the prirciplas an entty or a group most gaply o 7soon
usafu| inforrmaion ta the users af tha financlal statements cancernag the aature, value, timing snad

uacertalnty of revenue ang of the cazh dows generated by =2 confraci with 2 customesr

Ta maet this objeciiva, the essentlai practpie of tis swandard s 1hat an ertity gr & grocp must Facogniza
rovenug i lkustate the transfer of gonde or senioes promisec fa cestomers for 8 yalue wat reflzcts the

consideraticn the entity expecs o be antitled b in sxchanga for sich goods or sanices.

Therafons, the graup nest 3= into congideration the terma of the captract, es wall as all tha reovaint
facts ard circumnatznoes when applying this stEndard, which than 1t must apply consistently. nciudicg

the use of any practlkcal solubons, for contracis with similar characteristics znd umder simi

Circurstances,

ar

This sfandarc 2pecifiise the manner of acoousting for an individest sentract eith a cilent. However, as &
proctice! sgiufion, the group mey =leo apply ths ctandadcd for 8 oonfolle of contracts (or execusar
obligatione) with simisr cherssterlstics if the eatly reasanally expeats thai the efferts on the finanial
stutamants ganarated by the appllcatlion of this $tandard for the respective porfolo will nat bd
sigrificantly differant by fhose determined by e epplicatian of this standarnd (o the separate confrac

ior @xecution ohligasions) withis the respective portisho.

The Group kas applied the standard uging the ratrazaective malbed. with the cumulamed effect of its

application recognized at the inifial spalication dete, namalyr 1 fanuary 20158,

To shis affect, tie Group parformed both 3 preliminary anatysis for the financiel year 2817 and a geailed
analysis for e financial year 2018, concluding that the applicaiias of IFRS 15 does nol gencrate

signifigant effzcts an the fnangial staiements.

The Group has analyzed the main types of revenvesisonirects by appiying the fva-stap modet under

IFR3 15
. lgeatification of fie cisnk agreamants)y;
ldentlficasicon of the axecution coligations resulted from theze agreements,;
NReemiresion of e ransacdion price:
Allocgtian of the frangaction price to the ag/eement axecutien obllgations,
Recogtition of tha ravenus when (o as) the Campany flfilz a2 cortraciust exacutian abligeticn

e e

#lao, the cantract peovigions fat refer 1o; salee with the dght of keterr, the granting of volume disconis
! rabales, Lie grarding of warranties, ssnsighmont commMimeants, poential provisions that distingu'ah
helyeer: 2otons in cwn nase ard inermediaries, the custormer's options for &Sdilenal goods or
services, unevercised cusiomer righis. s wel' 86 sdvanoes racalved from cusiomers were saecifically

aralyzed.

Bazed on tha anaysis parformed, the management has conciuded that tFRS 15 does nol have 2
glyndizant impac: on tha consolloatad Onancial statements as compared to the curmnl revendes

recognition mmaibad,

Coaglis Earatalion & & infomalion gutpdess oaly. T—Eu]naﬁ.éfflér}%ﬁaga bet 13 M1 otficiel 1Rt Par sbrmIzaicn S
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TERAPLAST 54

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year anded 31 Decemuer 2016

2l Fricrs are expmessed i) Rucaniad el (RONT, waless afttawse staid)

2. SUMBLARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGCOUNTING POLICIES (cantinuad)
B] MWew or reviged standardg, but hot yei mandatory

“he tSrqup ditt nat adopt eary the folowing new ar sevised standards and intcrpretations whick were
imsued, bl ard ot vet in force. 1n eorra cages. thay are stil oot andarsed by the ELU

» IFRS 16: Laasas
Fhis standard wilt repiaca AS 17, IFRIC 4. SIC-15, SIC-27 and sats out rew requiemants for the
accouning of keasa contacts. The standard ie effactiva for annuat pericds beginning an or afiar 1
Januany 2015, IFRS 16 sets out the princips for the recagnition, rmeasurement, presentation ard
disclosure & information concerning leases far aoth parties to 3 coniract, i.a. te ceetamer {'easa2’;
anf the supalier {*iessor™,

In the 'eo2cr's agcowngng, acsedding to 1FRS 16, there wilt be anly one model for regisiering leass
contacts, hus eliminaiing tha classihcations inte opersting or finanse kease from [AS 7. By applying
ihig madel, tne Iessee wilt restig assets and liahiiltles for mosk lease cortracks and, in case of
revanrLes ard expenses. i will racagnize the amartizatian 2f tha laased assels, separately ram the
Arerest related b laass lobilines, The leasar’s sooounting, accorging ta IFRE 18, 5 subataatialy ot
modfigd as compares o the cement raguirements of EAS 17, Tha lessar wilk conlinue b use the
classification pringiples In LAE 17 and & will digtinguish batwaen two types of isase; aparating &
finarge leasa. According fo IFRS 16, both $s iessees and the [eaaars witl havs to oresert more
infartmation than that disclpssd aceordlng to FAS 17 in the nobes to the fnancial statementa,

Tha masl important impact iz #ai the Sroup will recopnize new assets and liabilites for s aperating
leases excep iF an axempiion from IFRS 16 is appbad. Cermin cpmmitmente concarning shart-lerm
leasas and lhose coneeming small value azsets wilk be inglodas a8 axcaptions. Ha gignificent icnpact on
the existing finance {easa contracts 15 expectad.

The recegnilion of 2 ight of use as 2n asset and of a leese Liadlity for the operaling Isase contracts |s
supacted 10 lead (0 21 increase in the value of tangible assats and of liabilfies of approcdlemataly

BN 2.8 million as of 3 Jaauzany 2319, In the stEtemant of a3seis and Bebilities, xpaneas Wit
amortzaton and expenses with irterests wll ba repcred  inseed of eass expanses. This will lzac to an
incegasa it 1he coerating resuh, which will be counterbalanced by larss interest expenses, The net
astirnates impact on the result of 201 8 's of approximatsly RON 50 thousand. Tre esimated impact of
sdaating this stamdard ks detarmined baged on the misasurernenta mede until teat data. The actual
im@zsts can slso ba amerded unki the date wien the Graup will pressn? the financiai staiements whica
incdude thie dake of inikai applicatian.

Tha Graup will apply IFRS 1B tlarung + January 2019, using for tratsltlon the medified refrespectve
methos, witheat ratraating the comparaiive waluss foe tha pedor perod presented, In @xhange, tha Group
will ecpgnlza the cumulated eFest from the application of the new s@rdard as an sdiustmeant 10 the
aoening batance of remined eamings at tha data of initia) applicatior, at the lease lakdity value, adjusted
thrawgh advance or egtimatad paymenls. Tha Group palisy e o ke inte azcount the possibitiics that
facilitetz the franaiticn to IF RS 16 in prectice. For szample, no tTight of using the sesste and liabidities from
the leaza reiged to the contrects that @xpire in 2013 waill Be Tegagnized.

In sdditizn. the Fellowing standzrds intarpretaions and amendmenis wera igsusd and it is Lot axpectad
For tharn to have & significent impact an the Group's financial s\tements:

Englisk. fransladizn iz Fr irfomnznkzn purpaasd anly Rerarcar hEl:mé;mm ts cif sl it or sabmission. Tl
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TERAPLAST 54

MOTES TO THE CONGOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For e Hinanciaf year anded 31 Decemnber 2018

(A BmcRte Ene suprdsaed i Hoiavan Ler MROMS), unfpes oherise Sizted;

2. SUMNMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES jcontinued)

o Armandment in IFRS 10 Congolidaied Financial Statements and IAS 28 Invesimente i Azsociaies
and Jotnt Ventures: Sale or Gontribution of Asscts befwean as nvestor and ita Aszoclate o
Jotnt Veniure
Trme amerdinents addrass an acknowledged inzonaiswensy betwesn she reduirameants in IFRS L 2nd
fhasa I 1AS 28, bn daaling with the sale ar coniribut on of assets baiwean dn nvestor and ks asscoe
ar [rnt vartara, The main congequence of the armendments s that 2 {ull gain or lo2s 5 recognized when
a transaclicn mvalves a busitess (whether B s housed In & subediasy or noly, & permal gain or o8 iz
recagnized wen B ranasction involvas assets drat 0o not constiite 4 business, even iF these aseels
are housed in & eubsidipry. It Dacambear 2015 the EASE oostpored the effedtive dake of this smengmant
indefiniteiy pending tha outcarns of ts research project on the equity methad of segounting  These
drendrmznta hade nat pet been endorsed oy the EL. The Group is sumenly aseessitg tha mpact of
gdopimy thaze amendments an the firancial statementa and i goes naf expedat & o te significant.

« IFR3 % Prepaymeni featurea with negative compansation (Arandment)

The Amerdment is effacilva for annual reporing perigds begineing on or afar 1 fanwsry 2019 with
pa‘llar application permited. The amendmant ellows financial esets with prepayment featires et
2@rMit gr require & party to 2 contrac adhar to pay of receive reasonable compeneation for the asly
taminaton o the contrac! (o that, froe the perspeciive af the hoider of the asset thera inay ba hegobva
cottpansatan's, 13 be megaured sl amotized coak o at fair value *hrowg 3 ather cornprenensive income,
The Groun is in pregress of sesessing the impact of adopting this amendment on ihe Grancat
statenents axd it does nat expact i o Ge slghiflcant.

v [AS 26: Longcrm Intereste in Associates and Joint Yartures (Amendments)

The Amenditanis ae alfective for annual reporting perode baginning on of atar 1 January 2918 with
garlier applicaion pemmittad, Tha Amandmenits wslate o whather the meaaurement, in partowiar
impairmant reglrements, af long wrm interests i associates end joint veoboras that, in subsiance. farm
padt af tha not investment’ in tne aasociate or jeint vantena shodld ba covemed by IFRS 9, [AS 28 ar a
combinaticn of both. The Amerdments clarfy that an antly appiles tFRS 9 Firanoie natruments, betye
it anplies |AS 28, ta suck long-tamm lntesests for which the equity methed is nat apalied. i applyiag (FRE
9, tha enlty de=d not take account of any adjustmends te tha cartyiig amount of [zng- term intdrests
iral arise from appiving 1AS 28. These femand:nenls have not yet been endorsed by the ELF. The Greip
dogs not awpest tha Impzot oF adopting these arendments or tnese finencial Statemerts o be
sigalflcant

r IFRE: INYERPETATION 23: Uncerialnty over incomea Tax Traataiants

The Interprataion ia effective for anauval pedoss baginning on o afer 1 Jaouary 2018 with, egrsr
appritation parmitted. Tha Interorafation addresses the accountng for Acome Exes wagn
teatments involve ancetainiy thai effects the apphication of 1A% 12 The Imorpretation provides
qUidance on conskdéting Unoertan tax treatmandg saparabaty or wgatrer, axaminaiion by 18x putharicss,
the eppropriate reathed 1o refizct unsariingy and actounting for charges in fasts ard girgumetenoss
‘The Group is in progress of assessing e imozct of adopting thiz amendment on’ the fingncizl
statemerts a3 it does not expect it to be signficant,

v JAS 19 Plan Anrandment, Cotallmeant or Setement {Amendments}

The Amendrmania ere effective for annusl parleds baginning o o afer t Janeary 2019 with earier
application peimtsd. Tha amend=ents raguire onites 0 Jse updated actuarisl sssumphions o
dalarming carenl sarvlee cost 2nd met intasaat for the remaindss of the annuat reparting nenad afler a
pEn amendment curtailmen: or setlepent hes occurred, Tne amendments aisa cailfy how tha
asoaunting for B pian arendmard, curtsilment or sattlernert affects applyhg the asset ceiling
requirements. Thege Amendrenis have not wat bsan endaread by the EU. The Group i9 in progress of
acgeLsiry the Impact of adapting thesa amendmants n the financial satements ard it does oot expact
it be matariad,

Fnzlinly Iranslasisn is far -nfomatian unicses only, Romenirn langrags 1exd is e aff sl ekt o sehmiesion | Pud g non I
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TERAPLAST BA

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for Fhe financial year anded 31 December 2018

et grunis 2re expressed in Romarian Lei (RONTY, unlzss otlenvle statad]

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES (soutimued)

+  Conceptual Framework in IFRS standards

The |ASE issued tha revised Congeptuei Frameawark for Financial Reporinm an 29 March 2H8, The
Concepmial Framework sets out e comprahensive set of concepts far finatcial reporting, atardard
setting, puidarts for preparers in gawslaning cansistent accounting poliches ard asststarnce ta others In
their efforts o understand and inlerprst the standards, |ASE alwa issued 2 separate sccarmparying
detumant, Amendments Lo References 1o the Congeptusi Framewark in 1WRS Standards, which sels
a.t the amendmants io affacted standards in arder to update refarences to the revised Concephual
Framawark. lis ebjgckve 1s o guppert Fansition fa the revized Conceptus: Frameswsrk 3¢ corcpanies
that develop accountng palizios wsing de Conceptual Framewont when no IFRS Standad applles o a
partcuiar transaction. For pesparars who davelop posounting polcies based on the Cancepiral
Frarewsshk, it is effectva for antwal perods begineing an ar after 1 Jaruary 2720, Thass Amcndments
hava nat vet been erdarsed by the =U.

v IFRS 3: Business Combinations {Amendments)

The L&SH [sseed amendments in Dafinllon of 2 Brsiness (Amendmants ta IFRS 3} simed at resowvine
t diflculizs thet anise when an enlity detsemines whetnar it has acquined 8 busness of 4 gioup of
zoastn. Tha Amatdments are effective or busingss combingiona for whizh the acquisiton daiz s in the
firsl arnual reporting period beginAlng on o sfter 1 January 2020 and to asset acquisiiions st acour
an - aker the beginnlng af that pericd, with eeslisr applieation pemitted. These Amehdmanls tawe nok
vet been angereed by the B, The Group Is In progress of assessing the impact of adopling these
emerdmenis on e finarcial sigtemants and T does not axpeat it be eignificant.

v IS 1 Presantatlon of Fingncial Statements and |AS & Accounting Poifcies. Changes in
Accounting Estirnates and Emroms: Definifion of ‘maleral” |Amandments)
Tha amendments are effiectiva for annia) paricds beginning on ar afier 1 Januoary 2020 wiin earer
sppiicatipn permittad. The Amendments ctarlfy the detiniior of megterial and now [t =hould be spplizd.
The new cefinition states thet, Infarmatlon i matedsl if omiting, misstating or abseurdng & could
reazanabry Te expecied o infuence decisions that the peimary uzsrs of genera: purposa financial
statements maka an the basis of thosa manclzl swtzments, whick provide Spakokal niemmeaton about
g speciflc reporting entity'. I adeition, the explanatars ccompanying fhe definition bave besn
improved. The Amandments atss ensure that the definition of materiz! i= consistant across alf IFRS
Stardards. Taese Amendments have nat yet been endorsed by the EU. The Group is in progress of
acseseing the lmpect of adepling thesa amendments an the finaralal statemnents and it does nat expact
iLto be significens.

+ The IASB has issced the Annual Improvernents to IFRSs 2016 = 2047 Cycle, which |z 3 callection
of amencémerts b [ERSs. The amendments are affeciive for annual periods beginring on o after 1
January 1% with eacier applicatan permitted, These snnual imprevements have nos yet dJeen
endorsed by she EL. .

% IFRS 3 Business Combinationa and IFRE 11 Joint Arrangenrents: The amend mants to
IFR& 3 clarify that when an ently sblairs confrol of @ business thai is = joint speration, it
remassures srevicusly haid interests in that besiness. Thae amendrnts to tRRE 11 clanfy
that whar ar antity gotaing joins soningl of 2 business that is & fwnt operation, the entty ¢oes
not remeasure previolsly kel inwanasts in that business.

* JAS 12 fngome Taves: Tne amendrments clarfy that tha incoree tax consaguances of

pEymEnts on finznsial instruments caseified a8 equity should Ba seccgnized according (o

whers the past ransacfions or events that generated distibutable profits has been

FECOGMTed.

125 23 Borrowing Casts: The amendments clanfy paregraph 14 of the stardard that, whan

a qualfying asset 13 ready for s imended use ar sala, ard sones of the 3pecilic barmowing

fesated bo that qualifying esest mamains autstanding at that point, that bormwing is (o b2

inciuded in the furdds that an entity bomows generally.

""I’

The Stoup le corently sssessing the impact af adoptng these annual improvemerts an te fnanzial
gtatements ard doas not axpect it to be significant

Englist framslatian is far [N Thatiar PuUrEeE®s Bnly. Hpmanian arguape 12 1a Lﬂ_a-nTHﬁﬁltBb: Yor subrpocsar.
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TERAPLAST SA
MOTESD TO THE CONIOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the finangig] year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SHFZNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLICIES (conthmued)

2.5 Summary of accounting and valuation principles

"he accountlng palcies adopizd ara consiaiant win Lhosda of tha pravioue finascial vear,
2.5.1. Gasiy and cash agubvatants

Czsh &nd zash equiv@ienss inclede Bould asseds and cther squtvaiss: vailas, comohnsing cash gt bans,
petty cask and saor kenn deposils with maturitisz of up te 3 mortneg.,

2.2.4. Revenue recognition
Fevanues from contracts with custamens

Taraplas), Sropp aperstes inshe fiele of produestion and trading of products ntended for the consirost:an
mazket. namely: PWC pipes end profilss, plassicized and rigid granukes, poivpropylere 2nd polwethylons
pipes fitings, 3iecl cakiad and parle, matal raadng syssares, woad inary, heat Insyisting panels ard m=2sal
atraciures,

Fevenuss from contects wih customers are recognlized when the Group companles transfar tha contral
o’ & gond or s2vine and, consequeatly, / fuffills an execudior obligetion. in ganaral, the Group has the
tra: ralea, as it aalds cantrol aver &l 4a aesals prlor to theit transfer io e customer.

Hevenues frow the gale of goods ard merchandize are recogrlzed at a aertaln point in Hma, whan tha
profucts ara deaipdered o the cusionars. The racaipt geadtines are - in genaral — oetwaan 30 ang 90 days
Tam e datg of izasing the invoice and delverng the goods. 7 the recognition of ravenues. the Growp
corpanas analyea Whather tha cohlracts with the suatamers imply ahe ar eversl aoligetiors o svects,
whesh would recuirg an alfocation of e transaction price,

[ e consideration promised |1 2 contract mcludesz 3 vanable camponant the Graup agtimates the value

af tha conaxipretion 3§ would Be entitled o, in eschavge far she trensfar of the goocs or servicesa pramlzec
fy 3 cuskarmar. :

The vatue of 8 consideration may vary as a result of dizscounts, rabates ratmbursamants, credis, orice
COrCESSiohS, innertives, fengrmance premivms  penalfies or other simiizr kams. The paomised
carsitiaratlon may 2180 rary, iF ar entity'a ight ta the coogiderstion degends on $i& extent in which 2 future
eveni Wil o wiil fot take pace. Far exaryple, the vslee of 3 sansideration would be wadiable gither if e
araduct were anld with g right to return It or if @ ficed ameunt ware promised as performancs bonus ke
raaching 4 spacifle objsctive.

The Groug grenks rebates o cartain customears, desendlag an the obisctves sat throuoh the centracs, whish
vecrease ha dmount dwed by the custormer. The Grosp applles consretartly a singla matiad curing ibe
rontact when It eatimates the effect of an uncerzinty ovar a value of thes vasdable sopsidaration, weirg the
mhod of tha mast Bkaly vaiue — the gingle most likaly volue i a fange of possbla values of the
consideratiza (ramely. tha slhgis mast likely result of the cortrast). Thia 13 an adeguate estmate of
yvalue of the vanable conalderation If tha contract hae bra passiblie resylts (such a6, & customar either
ulialns a voiume ¢ luimowver rebate o not).

A5 @ practical aolalion, IE e Group secajves short-arm advances from customers it ©oes not adjust e

recaived amaunis for the effects of a glgnheant finaralsg campanents, pegauer — AL tha baginring af he

Eé:untrﬂcat — it foregegs thal the periad between the ransfer of the assets and heir racelpt wall be Balow
YEEr.

Enylis Lraanalat an “= far Sifarmahon parposts oniy. ROTaIan AnaLame 18t e okklal tasl for subrelealon Troa o "::_':Lﬁn ;w5 |
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TERAPLAST SA

NOTES TO THE CONSGLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 3% Dacember 2018

il amawnte s exoreseed i Romenian Lel FROAY, UNEss arhemisa shboel)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Far carain araducts, the Group offars the guareniees rsduirec by the law, Therefare, tha arorized
guarar baa daes no represant ar: anforcemeant ablgatlar, since such peovisions usuaby sast to oroiect the
custormers foen the fak of acqulring rmefuncioning aroduces. Ferhesmare, a lzer tat raglires an entty 1o
pav & E0MEenseion if jis products cauvse damage ar njiries deas noi generats an awecution obiigeien.

Aoty and liabilities ralated to e contradt

When dhe Groun carnes out its sbligations by traneferring goods or senmees 1a 8 client. prior fo it paying a
sonsideration oe prior @ the maturity of the payment, the Group ciscaaes the coalrac, &3 an asset redatad
b tha contreat, sxclpding any amounts presentsd &8 receirables.

Bpen receiving sn advance paymen: from & custamer. the Goud recogal2as a liabiity rested ta the
eontract 2t the valus of the advance pavmant fae ks abligation to exesute, ransfar ar be ready to transfar
goods or senacas in the future, Suosaguantly. that liability relsten o tha coniract (comoboreted with e
secognition: of revenues) is deracognized when the ‘espectve gootis or senvicze am transferred and
aangagiertly, the Group fildls s executan cokigalon.

2.5.3, Revenues from rents and royailies
Reyanuas rexated to the rendaring services are recognizad as the senices ane provided.

Royaltes mie racagnized acoprding to the accrual besie af accauning, depending an e BCOr M
substanca of tne relsted condracts.

2.5.4, Dhadend and indersst revenuras

Revenues from dividends related b0 investmants are recognized when tha sharehciders’ rght ta racaive
them is determined.

Zor all financiz! nstrumants measured a8 amonlzed cost, inderest noeme is recordad using the effaclive
intetest rate (EIR}. EIR is the 't that exactly discounts $e estimabesd luture cash peyments ar recaipts
over tha expactzd life oF the finsncia: Instrument or & shorter pasiod, where eppropriate, ta the net CAmying
amaunt of the firancal esset o Laaliy. Intereat ineeme |z incleded in fnance ingoma in the statemnent of
prafit or [oss.

2.6.5. Lease

Leaza I3 classified ag inence l2aes wien the [2a9e ferms subztantadly ranser ail risks end benafite ralates
to the property sicht 1o iha lesses. All other leases are classlfied as operedng lBase.

A33ais held through fingncial 'ease are Inltially recagnized as Compzny &ssets at the fair value Tom the
initiz| loase phase or. if lewer. at tha valae of the minimem lsase payments. The comespanding ligtidity 1o
e lessor is inciuded in Eba balance 5qeet a3 finsnca lagsa liablllty.

Laase payrnens are cividad bebween finance costs and the raductiar: of the ledse latvlily 5o as o obtan
a constant rate of the interest related to the remaitng liability baance. Finarce casts e ragisiarad dirgctly
irtz profit and [oss.

Cperating teasa pa-_.,rménts gre Tecogrizad A% axpenrsa UnGer the siraight lina methed, durtng the lease
Emm. Patental opereting leRses are racagtlzed 85 expenss a8 insumad.

The |zasesz where e Sraup retaing subsiantially all the risks 3nd rewards incidental b cemarstip of a0
assat are classifiad 38 operadng leases. The revenue from cpersting leasss |s racagnized on a straight
lirte,

english trrenslalion i3 [ornfamEllsn pusses arky Emzn:éa'n-lhﬁuega bout 15 e oFfiial beeet for SLBminsian.
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TERAPLAET 54,
MOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
far the financlal year éndad 31 Decembear 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BGLIGCIES [contlnuead)

1.6.6. Foreign currency tHransactions

For tha preparstion of the Grows Ainargial staternants, transactions in oo clUrecies (foreign cunencies)
H:m0 the luraticnal one ave raglsfered at the exchange a2 in force at the dale of rassacton. Eack manta,
and at aach balence sheet date, monadery items derominatad in foreign CUfrensy are wanslated at tha
axchAnNgS rate in forea af 1hase datos.

Manetary aesete and liabllgas exprassed In frald 1 curanay at tha ane af the year are tansiated inty RO
&l tha ewchange rale valld at the end of the year, Linrealized ioraldn esxchange gzing and |osses are
presented in CCE

The RON exchangs rata for + unit of the foreign cureney:

31 Dacember 81 December

2078 2T
LUK 1 : 4 5349 45587
LEE0 : 4,07 56 3 BE1E
CSHE ; 4.1404 980

“HIr-ranetary bans which are ireasured ot historic cost in a fereign currency ara net trans!stad beck,
2.5.7. Costs related to long-term borrowings

Bormowing costs directy atribotadle to the acqulstion construction ar producian of an asest that
recessany ‘sket 5 gubstantial pedod of Sime o get raady far its intenced uga or gale ars capiiallzed as
part 27 the cost af tha aeset until thay are ready for its ntended usa ar for saie. Beveades fram kernporany
Irwestments f Icans, wnkie such l0aNs ara axpansead for assets, ara dacucterd fram the costs ralated o -
taim loans eligible for capitoi-ation,

Al athies horroaving costs sre expersed Ik the pericd in which thay aceur,

The amortized coet for fhe faancial asasts znd fiablliles 1s caloulsted Slag e effactive intarest rata. The
amartzed ¢osl & caleulated by taking into egcoust any discaent o premium on scollsition mnd feas ar
cosls Lhat are an ilegral part of the effective interasy reie.

4.4.8. Savernment grards

Bovernment grants ere v racoghizad :nfl ere is resscnabie Zssuranca thiet the grant will ba racaived
dar:d al: attacned cenclbiones will fe carkplied with by the Sraup.

The Gaverrrendt geaeta the main aendition of whizk 18 et e Graup acqguire, buyEld or obiein HEaneise
larg-tarm aseets ane recognized 25 dofarrad inpome i the Balanee shee: and trarafarred to the profis and
loss stalemant syaiematically snd regsonabiy cver the useful life of tHose assets

Ulher Gowvernment gratts are systemeficaily recocnized aa revenuss i tha ssme aeriod as tha coets i
imends 1o offse:. The Governmenl grants rereved as carpersstion for axpenrer or losses already
reCIrded o in arder 1o provlse immediste flnanalat suppor 1o e Graup with no relaled future costs, are
charged b the inceme stalzmant when they Ffalt que.

Srarts receiahle in ordes to BUAL Mg aEsals such a3 fanglihla asssts are recordad a2 investrment subsidas
&nd secogrized in the profil and oss statumant ag tha depraciation expenses are wcuriad or atine ime
the essets 22:ived from tha subsidy are retinad of disposed of.

Erplsi srarerallc. 1 far iaforealon purpases orky. Roecasiar lngiege Lexl s he cRicla] et o sebriam .'._Tf.. P, S T
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TERAFPLAST 54

NOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATER FINANCIAL ETATEMENTE

for the financial year ended 21 Dacsmber 2018

i)l armiunls 518 capAssEnd in Rodamen Lef (RO, uriipss: armenslse Sfatec)

5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5.9. Costs relaied to retiremant rights

Basad an the gatiactive lagor contrat, the Group is under the abligaiion o pay retiremant benefits o its
empluyses depanding on fer senicnty within the fireup. amoutitlrg o 2 - 3.5 s2ignes The (5rodip JEBS 84
awiaral acwary to computs the fir valua of he ratirement benafs relstsd dabiliy and raviews te valls
of *his Fability each year depanding on the ernployans' seninrly within the Grap.

2.5.10. Emptoyees’ contribution

The Sroup pays cartrbudons te the soclel Secutiy GiAte nuedget, to e pension furd &nd I he
unempayrnent wind, at the evet patahlished by curreri leg'slztion. Tha value of tese contribulicns is
registerst in the proft and lose statementin tha same pevied as the carraspending £alary expenza.

2.511. Taxatian
Income tax expens: |2 the sum of the currant tax snd oefarred [ax.
Current tax

Currenl 13x 1= hased on tne Exable prafit for the year Taxable proft is different tnar the profit reporied ir
qusterneant of cam.prehatsive incoome, hecause b exclubes the revenue and expensa LEms whizh are taxable
ar desucibls in other years and it slso excludes tha items which are nevar taxable or dacustibie. The
Grop's cument tax Hebflity is cpmputad using the towation rates in force of suhstantially ir force &t the
balar.ce sheet date,

Dafarrad oz

Defarred tay is recognized over tha difisrence bebween the caimying amount of rEsets and [abilitles in tha
firancial staiements ard the carreaponding fiscal besas seed in the cormpuistion of taxable intome ard it
ie detemeired by using the balance sheet labity metod. Seteried tax lisbilies are generally regognized
sar 2l faxabie temporary diferences, while dafoired mx aasms are racegrized in ine extent in whilch it is
‘ikely o Piave taxable Income over which (o uSe those tem porary daductible diffarences. Sueh assets and
lizhillues ars noi recognized if the temporary differsnca arises from goodwil or from initial esognitien [othar
than from B MUsiness soembination) of other assats and ligbilties in a transacton that atfacts neithar the
taxanle ingpma. nar tne accounting incame.

Dafereed tax jizbilities are recognized for temporany faxable diffarsnces azspoizbag with inuestmeants in
qubsldlaries and w0 ioint ventuses, except far the casas L which tha Sroup i3 able o control the reversal of
the tempersty difference and it ig likaly far the Emporary difarence not 16 ba reversed in the foresaeabibe
fumre. Tha defemed tax @sseis msulted from deducinla tamporary diferences pssociated with such
iryEstmants and interesis are recognized only in ths extent in which it in likely for sufficient taxakle noome
te pxigt on whizh o se e benefits related to femporary diferences and i i= pstirrates that thay widl be
reversad in the foresssable futura.

The carrving amownt af deferred tax aszels ks rawlmned 2t eash batance sheet date and it it decfesged 1
Ihe eschart iR atich 1 s not likeiy far sufficient Bxabie incame 10 iz bo alow the full or gertial recows sy of
the ==set. - )

Tinfared lux assets and liabilfies are measured &t e taxalion rded estimated o be appllad durng the
pefiad when te lability i sattled or the saset reglized, based on the ‘axation refes (and 1ax lsw=: farce
ac entering inta force substantially until the balance sheet date. The measwrament of defersd tav a3sete
and lisbilites caflecs the 1ax consequances of e manner in whick the Group estimetes, @8 of the balance

sheat tate, that it will recaver or s&ftle the carrying amoutit of it gesets and Eabiftias.

f—.n;'i:l] lrarsatinn is fui (farnakan pi.lh:.:;hﬂﬁﬂa anly. FeriAman ‘anguape e la tha gfical bt for submizsian.
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TERAPLAST 84

MOTES T THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEMTS

tar the financial year ended 31 December 2018

dail sirinle ae dxramed it Roiranian Lal PRONY, anipss pitianatse stata}

2, BUMMARY QF BIGHNIFICAMNT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conllneed)

Lafwrad tay assets and delaried ta fabllitas are ofsal o e lagally anlzseaila gt austs i st ofl nummant
te assets agairst current tax liabilides and the defored taxes rolawe 1o tha same taxaais entty and tha
zame taxaticn authority and the Grodp iatends ta offast its deferad Lax asats whi bs delered tax [abives
an a net bags,

Cu-rent 2y @rd deferred tax is recognized &s revenue or expende in orod and [os3, except for the cases
which rafer to fems credifad or Jdebited directly in ather gampreheneive income, gase jn which the izx 3
a0 resednlzad clrectly i othor comprebensve incorss or axcapt ior tha casas in which they arise from
the initial accounting of & business comblnation.

2512 Tangible aasels

Tanglble aszats. lass land and buldnee, ere stetad af cost, net of apcumuiated depraciation and | or
accumulates Impalrment loesas, iFany.

Slech cost -noludes the cost of repacing part of the plant snd equipr2at ane barrowing costa for ssng-term
conatuckan propects if the tecagnlblen critarta are met. When signifcant pats of plant and agulpmant are
recuired 1o b repisced at intersals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific usefu
ivas, Eikowids whan & e mepair is parformad, ite ooel = racegrlzed in he cermying amaund of the plart
and equipnenl ag a replacemeant i the recagrition cdwena are satzfed Al other repalr and mainshanse
~aafe are recopnized in profit or loss 8z incurred. The presest waiue of the espested cogt for the
decommistloning of en agaet after its vee is inchided n the coel of the respective asget ¥ e recogsiiion
Zriltweia for a provlsion are meal.

Land and buikknge are mezeured al fair valug lees acoumulsted depresiation an butldirgs and impairment
lx2eos recogrized at the date of revaiustion. Valuations e parfarmad with sufficiao. frequency bo ensure
that the casrving ameount of a ravalved asset doss nof dffer mafzdalky from its Zair value, Accumulated
dzpreciekon as of the revebuation date is eliminated Tom the gross carryiig amaunt of the assaf ard the
nat amednt i testated at e zevabilated velus af the asseat,

& revawation aurpius g recorded it ofher compreheneies incomne and sredited to the asgel revalustinn
surplus in aguity. However, 1o the gxtent thal i reverses a revalusticn Jeficit of the 2eme asset praviously
racognized In profit ar lass, tha Increase iz racogaszed 1 proflt ard oss. A ravaluatlor: deficit 12 recognized
in the profit or e of the pericd . excepl 10 the exted that  cfigets an exsting surplus an the sams assat
secagnized in fhe as6et revalustion ragerve,

Upan digpasai, gny revalugion resenve reigling 1o the concemed agsai being sold iz frAnafarred ta retainec
Azt

Aangible aas=i iem and any significant part vecognized initially sre derecognized upsn sispasal ar when
ni efnnomic nanefite Are expected om their use or dispesal. Any gaan of aarning resuiting frame the
deracognillarn of an sssal [calculatad as the diffarence pateen net deposal proceeds srd the camving
amount of the asset) i3 inctuded in prafit and loss when te g3ast 9 derecegnized

The reslduat valts, 196 usatal ite and 1o mathods of deareceation ara saviewed at the gnd of each finaacka
vear ard adjusted mtrospectively,  approprists.

Constructicne in procress for profuctan, rent, [ease, a4 ministrativa ar for pupoeges ok yet detemairad =
sadistered at hsbarkaat coet, e impa.mment. The Impaineent of thess azsetz starts when the assete are
“Bady Yo ba weed.

Plant and machirery is registered in tne financial position statement a1 t1eir histerle vaiuo adjustad o the
2ffect af kyparinfiation Jntil 31 Desember 2003, seconding to IAG 2% Frianclal Aoporing in Hyoednfatiangry
Ecananies decreasad by the sebsaguently acaurmbiatad dapraclation and athar Impairment losges, i any.

-E.!_'|gllsr: rertalatisr: = for infoemekian Jumpasas ary. Remanion languags fex is e L'rFﬁl:-iai-i.E:t:! kar B-.Ji::i:ﬁalnr: r—= ——,:-":'r'_"
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TERAPLAST 5A

NOTES YO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financiaf year e#ndatt 31 December 2018

fal amauniy oo espuesaad in Fotlaniar el (RO, anfess atkorwise sfate]

2, SUNMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (continued}

Bepreciodon is registered 20 a8 to decresse the cost of the asse? s residual vaiva other than the and
ard investments -n progress, aann thalr sstimated usefil iife, using *he straight fine basts, The asimatad
uzef:l livas the rsidual velees and the deprecistion metnod ara raviewed &l the end of esch year. having
s= et changes in future azcounting estmates.

Aggets held in finance ®ase ars depreciated v 1he Uaefsl life, similany ta asuets hield ar, if the leese
leried is shartar, during the respective leaca contract.

Nainerance and repais of tangible assets are inciuded as expenses wher: they ocour and skaifcant
imaravemants . tengitila assers which increass feir vatua oF casful life or which sigafisandy Incresse their
capacity to generate ecanomic benefits, are capltalizad.

The following wseful tves are used far the cemputation of cepreckation:

Years
Buildings 20 - A0
Ptant ang equipment KR
YWehiclas urder finakee aase £
Installadans and furniture 3—10

2513 Investrmant properties

investmant properties ame measu-ed inlMally at cost, including ‘ransaction costa. SubsedUent b inital
zacagnition, investment arepeies are staled at fa't valuae. which reflecis market cond o at the reporting
date. Beins gr. Iosses ansing from changas in the fair values of invesirment properties are ‘ncludad in prof;
ar s 1 the penod in which they ailze. including the o rraspandlng tax effect Fair valuas ana determinad
based or ar znnual avalkaton performed oy an aceredied external indapendent vahiator soplying a
yaluation mada sesommentsd by the narnationa; Valustion Standards Commsties.

lnvestmeni peoperies arg derecognized eithed whet they have bean dispesed of ot when thay are
permanen:ly withdrawn from wse ard no fubine ecenomic benefit i axpacted g their dispasal.

Transfars are made to ar oo invesiment prapesty anly when there is 3 sharga in use. For a transtar from
invasinent property ¥ owher-occupies praperly, the deerned cost for subeeqrent accounting is the fair
valug =t the dafe of change in wee. I swher-occupied proparty becomes an invastment propery, the Sroup
zaoolnts for such property in aseerdance with the policy stated under propenty, pidni and equiprment U b
*he date of change in use,

2.5.14. Intangible assets

Intangibie esset purchased ssaarately are reporsd at cost minus sccurulaied amartzatonfirnpsairmant
logeas Amedtization i3 carpated through the straiznt lire bagis cved the usesul tife. The eztimated ysafu
ives, the resicual vatues and the emartizasan method ere reviewed af tha end of each year, hawing a8
afect charges in fulurg Accounting acimates.

The faliawing Lsefut lives are used far the catmputadon of amartratian

_Yemrs
Licensas _ 1-5
Erand _ 20
Client 'ists : : 20

Tregiiah s valation & Far irTomet ki, przases only. Reearar Brguage =4 16 the offil e for subrrissor. f_-:nT_"'—_'_‘_l
Ed_ -y H S TN

5 4P, g

S i



TERAPLAST SA

WOTES TO THE CAONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the Ainanciat vear cindad 31 Decemnlier 2018

gl ity sre snpredui i Hocanian el IR0, anless sihienwee stadei)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGRIFICANT ASCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
2.515 Impairment of tangible and intanglhla assate

The Group assexses, 2t azch raporting date, whather thare is an Indicglion thag an agset may be mpained.
If v is sUCh an Indeatan. e recovaraole amount of the asset s eatmated o determing the size of the
impaireenl loss, When itz impassible 1o 3ssess e rscoveralile amcunt a7 an indwiduiei 2s3et, the Eroup
aatesges the mecovarable amourt of the casn gsneraing unizc whizh tne asae! belonga ba, Whees 2
consisteitt d:stribition basis can 9 icentified, the Group 535219 arz alzo alncated w0 ather separate g2ek
GEIETEngG units or 4o tha smallest groun of cesh gerersting unita for which @ conelstent alincation basis
oan 7e identfied.

latang ble agsets having indefnits vseful lives and int=ngikiz asseis which ere nof val eveiiable o be usad
ara teated for impairment anrualiy and whenever share is gn tndication thaet it is pogsible for the aszet o ne
irn peired

A0 asset's recovarabie ameunt i tha Bighar &f 20 aesars or sash-ganerating Unil's [CSU) 12 walus oss
codts of disposal and 18 value I wse, When messuring the value (n use, the fiHure estimeted cash idows
am 2attled &) the current valke using & discouni rate orior fo saxetion which reflscts current market
2eaatumiente of the fempeeary valus of monay and the speclfic rigks of (e assatl, for which futdre sash
Aravs have not been adjusted.

If the recoveiebie value of an s (ar o 3 cash genarating Jrit) 1g estimatad as oeing lower dvan Ha
Sareying amaunt, the carrying amount of the asset (o the cash generating und) is reducee a the recoverzbla
amant, A5 irpairment 1084 ia recognized immediaiély it profit anc ixss, evoep! ur revaload assats for
which Wherd Is o myvaiuatian thal can be decrsased with tha ianpalrment nss

If ary lir:pairmant [oss i subsaciantly reversed, the carnylng amaunt af the asset (of the caah genreraing
urit) = incraased o the reviessad estimalon of s recoverstte vane, aut ao a5 the reviewed aamying
amnpunt does not evgeed the earning ampunt which wduld have beesr detadmingd kad any emaaliment loss
nol been recagnlzed for the saspactiva asset [cash gererating urit) o prior years. A reversal of an
impaiment [255 is recegnized mmediately it prof ard Ioas.

B rvalugtion suiplus i sacognized a5 an e of comprekensis income and credited fo the assat's
reyEluEtion rezendes . excapt for e cases in which 3 decreass in vaiur was prEvicus!y recognoeed I profit
and 1733 for & rovalued 2556t oeee in which $he surplus 2an be recsgrlad in profit and loas within te it
af s prics cecreaga,

2 548, Inventorien

Ting ibrenioes gk2 iegisiaren @i e wwest velie beivesn ool bod G el eoticabie vaiue, Thi o2l
redlizakie value ia the selling price estimated for tne inventorles mihne &1 esfimatad costs for completon
and *he costa e2iaied ta the gala. Goste, ingleding & portan relatac te fiwed and yariable incirect cosis are
dlieated tr invantorhas helo theough tha methoe mazt apareorlate far the sespectiva class of inveathries
Finashed progucts, sarni-finlshed geads and prodicion In progiess arg imeasured ab actual cost. For the
fallowisg classes of inventories, the average welghtad cost method iz uged: the rew materal for pipes S
pining. merghandize, inventory iters f emell eala, packaging materizls, gonswmablas,

2517, Shara capital

Ceanmmors sharas are classified in pquities.

At the: rapusrehase of tha Group sharas the pald arount will Gecrezss equiy belonging to the hakders of the
company's eguity, thiough retained earndngs, urdi they are canceled or reisaued. Whar these sharas are

pLbERqUEnily reigsued, the recaiveq amount (net of transaation ooebs and of Ihocme fax effects) s
rapogrized in gy basanging to the holdars of ba Group's equlty.

Fagllsh trarsabon s o damision oumcads anke, Remarkar Engaege szl is he gifical bt Jer aubmlrsien AT e B EEL
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TERAFPLAST 5A

HOTES TO THE CONSOQLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial vear sndad 31 Cecember 2016

fai! arnounis are exorezasd in Rorlaman Lo (RONY, unfgss otfienstse aisren]

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continusd)
2518, Dividends

Mividerds related o ordinaty Shares are recognizes as facility w the shareheloas 11 the sonsolidatec
finaneial swternents in ke vedod Inwhich thay ara aparavad by B1e Groun sharsholders

25159, Provizions

Pravisions are recodrizod when the Group has a present obligation (egal ar constructvay 32 a 12ault of &
aast evant, it iz probable thet an outfiow of rasolices ambodying esenomic benafils wilk ke required from:
the fZroup o s21a the obligetion and & refizhie astimate can be mace q? tha amount of the vespectiva
aalgation

Tre amoun recagnlzed as & pravision Is tha best estirate of the amaunt nacessary to setite the currant
ctigadon Bs of fhe balance sheet date, consliaring the risks and ungertaintes related o the obicetion. If
& provisian is mneasuisd using he estirmatad cazh flows necessery for setlling the present obiigstion, the
cAriylRg amcurt 5 the present value of the respectiva eask, flowes.

2.5,20. Sagment reporiing

Segment reaoitlng 15 done cornsismantly with the internal reporfing to the chief operating deciswn maker.
Tre chet aoarating decision makar, which anawess for allocating rescUrzes and sasecsing the parfarmanca
ot etwvity segments, was [dentified a3 being the Beard of Diractorz, which s msking the strategic decisiaaz.

2.8 1, Financizf assets and fiabililea

The Growp's financlal assets includa cash and cash equivakerts, trade receivables and long-toim
ipwesirents. Elnancial liebitties include finance fease liabiitas, Intarest bearing bank loans, avardiafta and
trade snd other payables. For each item, the asscunting poliies on resedritlon and measurement ara
presented in this note.

t oans and receivablos

This eatagery is the most relevant fer the Sroup, Losns and taceivablas ars nan-derivetve financlal assets
with feed or dentifiaktle paymen:s and which are nat guoted on an sctive market. Aar nitial recognidan,
these financisl 2ssets are subsequently recognized at deprecisted cost, using tha affective interest rate
mathad, minue the impaicent. The deproclated cogt is comoctad by taking nto accowni sny recustlar or
pUrshase premiur and eny coenrplssens and cogsis that are an intagrant g2 of the effectve interast Fale,
Twe impact of e depreciatas cost method due be the affective tnerest rale ks included in prafit a0d loss
under financial revanuas white changes dug ta FY ara recognized in profit ang Iose uhdar caste to find
loans and tha cast of goods sald or under ather gagrating expenses.

Borrowitgs and liabilities

Loars are initally reccgnizad &% fair value mirus e rrigls for the respective pparation. Subsequently they
ara registered st emarized cast. Any difference batween tha initial valug and e reimbursement valee is
~ecognized in proflt 2ne loes for tha period of the [ans, wsing the effaclive interest rate method.

Firarncial ingtremerts are clazefled as liabilties or eguity scconding b e raturg of the contrestieal
arrangemert. Interest, dividenas, gains and ipsses relaksd to a Snancal natrument clagaified a= liadillty are
reported =6 exparss o revenue. Distibutions b the hoiters of fnansial instrumants classifled a2 egUity
are ragisterad directly i equily. Fnanzlal Instruments are offsst when tha Greup has & 'egal applicabla
rigkt ta offgst thars amd It Intends to offset frem either art a nat basis or to realize the asset and settiz the
liability 2k the same lime.

.Eﬁgi'a‘n trars:aban 5 for Afarralicm pL-‘-'pmee. zrly. RaMEnien lgngracs c=a is te D:HEIE] text for auoimigalce. [ £
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TERAPLAST 3A
NOTES TO THE GONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for (ke finantizl year endad 31 Decernber 2018

2. BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (zontinued)

Fhis clagsifioation of the investrents denends on thair nsture and paroose snd il s determined s of fne
‘nitial rocogaislon,

hinpaicrment of financial assactm

Finzhciel assets are measurad for impalrmernl at azek reporiing date. For trade racaivables, g simplifiec
apnrozsh g adoped in which impairmatst loszas ste *eoagrized at a value aqual ta that of the expected
085a5 fram receivagles dunng ther usafl ke 1 thers are kan ingurances ar guarantess far the payale
hlantes, the computetion of expacied loseos from receivabbes is bagec on the prababllity of defay't relstec
o bl engurer § guaranfor for the insured fguaranteed podion of the payatie balarce, while the amoun:
ramaitng nat cevered will have the caunteroa:ly's propatitity of defaull,

Eoty mabu~ents can ba classified imevesably 23 befng meazgrad ab fgie valus througr otoer
SeMrehEngive income |E tham ara i hasd for sals.

IFRS & allws an exarnption in cags of those intesests heid In subsldiares, associates and |oin: venluras
whesh afe Rocouittae “or according 0 [FRS 10 Consotidetes fnancizl atatements, [A% 27 Ssparste finargizl
statarments ar 1AS 28 nvastmenis in associates anc innt vanistes. Taraglz=at applies iz exemptor and
snotinues o measure the ntarasts nedd in subsldiaries and associaies al cost minus any epairmant pgaes,

The provisicns of (FRS 8 cangérning the recognizlon 2 messuremant nf inancia; assets were apolicd
retraaectively witheit rastatng the values of the comparative perled, walsh contrus fo be recned
according o he segountng sw@ndasd applicabia previously 10 foanrgial nstraments, (85 22 The finarsial
aztets resoandion and measuremeont diffarancas between IFRS 9 and 1AS 39 ara distlosisd in Maote 2,

Dererognition of azgets and llablidas

The Group darccagnizes firsancial agaets only when the confraciual fighis sver the cash flows related to
12 zogets expia o i transfars te andther entity the financial asset and, substantally, all risks rnd oenefits
seaaied to the aogat.

Fhe Group caracogn-zes financiet liabdisies onky IF the Sroug's liapilfea have hbeen paid, canceled or they
heva expired.

2.5.12 Fair value megsurement

An ertity, messuzes fnancial Insttumenta and ronfingnoral asscts, such as investment pronery, st fair
vlua at each salance shael cato. Also, the Fair velues of inarcial Instrormacts measgrsd 8t amaonized cost
el playantad in e 25 .

Frir value is the price that would be received to 2all 3n asset ar paid fa transfer 3 lighitity 0 an orderly
trengaction babween market paricpanty 2 the mesgurement date. The f@iF walua medsurement g bases
A the presuinpton dhat the transaction fo sell the assst ar transfer the laxility takes place cithar

v In ke principal markee for he asset ar liagiity; or

o dn ke abseince of a prnclpzl market, in the most advantageaus market for the asser or Eabilitr.

Tk fair valus of an asest or a liablity is moasuied ysing tha assurmptors that imarket participanls wouid
nga whan pricong e assel of ilablity, ssauming that market pazticlpanta gctin heir 2conorEs best iaterest.

A fair value measuramant of a non-financiat asset !akes inta sccount @ markel paricipant's aoillty ta
genzrate escnomic benetits By uaing the asset in ils kighest and beet u9e or by sedling it t snother mazkel
particizant that would use the assed i is highest and best usea.

Chgiak: lrEnglatn = frf Infematon slipoees saly. Ramarar ligtage o s the oficl: el for svamasies, |
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FTERAPLAET 54

NOTES TS THE COMSOLIDATED FINANGIAL BTATEMENTS

for the financizf year anded 31 Recembar 2018

il amgunls an gudprEaand in Romanian Ler ru?ﬂr'.lh_.l. sy Gifenaise staged)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PQLIGIES (coatinued}

an ertity uses vatuatior techiniques that ate appraoniaie in the elreumstances and fa¢ whish suffcient deta
are auaiagle o measure fair vatue, maenizing the usa af reevant obssrable inpuie ang minimizing the
.1z of urobsarvable inpUE.

Al assets and sabiliies For whilch fair value is measused or discloged in the finargcisl stalements are
categonizad within the falr vaiue hierarchy, desenned az faliows, gasEd an thar kwesi level input iat 1s
signiticant to the fair valua measurement as a3 whole:
»  Laval 1 — Ousted {enadjustzd) markel prices in active markets for iertical 2eeets or [abities;
s Eavat 2 —valrapan echnigues for which tha lowest level inpat hat is signifizant te the fair valus
reasyrement |2 dlracly o1 indinectly absenanka:
s Level 3 — Yalugtion tachnigues far which the jowsst level input thet is significant 4o the fair value
maasUiement is uncbsinvable.

Ear zssets 8nd liabill ies that are recagnized I the financis: statemen ks an 8 recurning beeis, tha Gorapany
determinas wheker Tansfers kave ecoumred betwaen lavel: I the nierarchy by re-aszassing catejorzetion
"hasact on e Iowest lavel Input that is significant ta the 87 velue messumement 38 a whole} at ine end of
aach reparting pesiod.

External vailators are invehed fer valuafion of signideant asgets, such a5 investmeant property and svailatde
Far gale Anancie) assets. |nvolvemenrt of extemal valuatars is dacidad upon annualy by the management
Sotecton oritena Include market knowiadea, repetazion. inde pendence aad professional standards . i they
are speciied.

M esch reporting date, Group's maragement analyses tha movements in the veluas of s2aets and Aab:lities
which ara reguired to be re-megsured or rg-assessad 83 per the Group's accountng policies.

Groug's matagement, in conjurchian with the entity's axtamai valugiors, alsa campaies e change |h e
Fair valie of ezch ase=t ard llability wit: relevant axiernal sources o datermine whether the ehange s
raazonakle.

Far tha plirposs of the notas and Sair value dizelosures, the Gmun has determined classes of assets and
liahllties on the basis of the nature, charactarstics 2nd rigks of e asset or liabi.ity and e kves of the Fzir
valua hierameny 85 axplained sbove.

2.5.93 Usa of entlmsates

The preparatiar: of the sonsabdatad financial stetarmants raguireg the parformarce of esdmates and
|udgrmenss oy the maragermant, which affects e repotted Bmounts ot 3ssetd and disbtlides and e
preseniation of patenfial assets and liabiidas at the balance sheet dare, a8 well ag e rapartad amounts
of revanyes and axmenses during the teponting perad.

Actual resuts may be diterent from these estimatas. The estimaies and judgments on which hese are
hazed are reviewes parmaneniky, The raviaws of the sccounting estiraates are recognized dusing the perod
isy which the egt-mate is reviewed. # thia review affects pnly tha sespective paricd or durlrg tha seview percd
and during futine pecicds, H e review afects ooth tha cuzrent period and the fLtuke perioda,

-E-r-g."g.h ranBlelon 1= Far irfbamatise pLrpbeas onlt, Rpmandan |;I:IT§HEQEI et & e cPiml bt far suamisalon, s — -
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TERAFLAST 34
HOTES TO THE CONROLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
far the finan{:ial y&ar chded 31 ﬂncemuar zma

i BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTHONG
3.1 Judgnients

In the process of appyiig ths Grodp accounting polcies. managemsant has imade e following judgments,
which nave the rost slanlflcant effact on the amatints recognizes in the gonsolidatad firgnciel stetemanrts:

Investment proporties

The Gioup 1ss ceramin Bssats which management has decdad to racessify a5 investment propertiss, s
foilowws:

4  The Group hokds a plece of land ard a buiicieg (previcudiy uzec for the haad office), ocstad in
Romana Straet, Bierta, [n fanuary 2012 tha management degided that e fral purposa af lne
[2nd wae to be Beld inorder e obiain &n ‘norease o s value and to ne sugsequentty matsslzilzac
thrawgiv sale. As & fesult, e iand was classifad In danuary 2012 me an investrent propety;

« InDecember 2012, the assais previoesly ransferred to Teracota Bistita SRL were reverses. The
managemeni desided that the fnal purpose of tha lanc [aeate:d in Bistrita, str. Drumul Catelii was
by Loz hald in arder o sbfin an insreese in ifs vaive and to be sebsequantly materialized $rough
sale A5 A resdlt the land was clzesiling in Becemoer 204 2 as & investmsant greperty, baing vaivad
at fair valus 3= SFthay dete;

+  The Growp hold3 land 3nd balifdisge (previcusiy used ag regional warahagses) In Congtants. In
2013 tha managemert decided that the finzl purpasa of #ie 'snd was o bz held in order o obtain
an incroasa in s value and 1 ge gubseguently materialized throuak sate pe & ~esut, the land 2ad
buitdings we«e clagsifias i 2017 ee investrnent properties, when thoy wara measwtad at ot vaiue

Acquisition of Dapace sharehokding

A ab 30 juna 2017, Templae: gonciuded the transzcton for ihe saguisition of S0% of Depace SAL
Subsequenify, i zE*I? tha Compaty signed - poregmenis foF the soquindment of an additbwenal 17%
eharefolding in Depaca.

Az pz M Decempe: 2017, fxlowing the analysis pedormed by the Gioup rmanagermant, Depaca was
acopirtad for 92 an affiate urdsr tne equity method, because tha Sroup dlg nat hold corkral oeed the
pomDany 83 of that daw. In 2017, tha Group did ret have a voing majority 0 the conmpany skategic
dacielans.

Tre franaaction was finalized ater s approval by tha Taraplast 34 General Sharehelders Meeting and
racaldlng the apnrovel from the Romanlan Compeiltlor Gouncil. Tharafora, TerePlaet teos contral of
Depaco in-Jancary 2018, after sbigiring the fevorsble approval of tha Sompetition Council and feqletaring
the addilioras 17 % nvesiment with the Trade Regizter,

Alse in 2017, Tosaolast hes condluced B 9ale-purzhase pramise Wik the manority skarahaidass of Dapson
for tha reay of 1heir imsasinsent uo to 38% af the compeny. Acoarding fo the sontact tenms. the ransaction
will bo caitad avt with:n 4 yesrs at most for a price soiredated with Cepace's rasufs in the folioeing vaara
Bui not leas than a dotsemined amourt. A3 of 31 December 201 ¢, tis oplion was nol raiacted Inthe
Comspany's DalRnee gheet, bacauss Its exerchsing wes alsg conditiorad by the approvai 3y the Gompattion
Carnel kar sale contral Afler oiizining the sole conliol aver Plapacs SRL, e Conpany recagnized, uader
the "Lang-term llzbilitles’ position the fzir valee of the puechase prise agresd with the promlssary-seilers
Cansidering that the cantrol ovar tha degisiona of Deaaco company is exetcised by e Sioup. the sale-
purchase tranaaction whil be carrae aut for & minimum agread price ard the partes undermok to purchase
and, ragaeclyaty, ced the additivnal 32% package the Group consolidetas Depecr SRL it i holds tha major
EHEI% package.

English ranslatiar. & fo! infutmation poidosss ony. Rpmanion g igeasa st B e ol e o suberselon. PR A
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TERAFPLAST 3A

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far the financizl year ended 31 December 2013

jail amounts ara exprdssed it Aomamen Le ROV, unleas oherwise siefacy

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (eartiored)

The &l value of Doazcn SRL at #e dete of purchase was of KON 70,555 558, daterminad falkewits tha
preparaton of a revaluation report by an external appisiser. The censideration for hoiling 99% was
campated i mlatlon o this fair value, resulling & gocdwil! o7 ROK 35 2305 8249,

ehze details on thisg trarsaction arg ingludsd in Mg 15 2nd 18
Acquigition of Foliiub

Tarapiazt 54 acquinad the remaining 50% sharehalding in Falituh & from tha French patiner Mew Scanlilab,
in Ccdobary 2017 for tre amount of BON 19,453,250 The Gravp acquirzd this shambcidmg and int=grated
the activity of the Popretnyane Division. in crder fa be able 1@ provide to i{s chiante an intsgrated sestarr: far
wWater anc sewerage.

The fair valuz of Polifub Ba ac the acguisition date was ROW 24 855 024, as dateiminad [Hilowing
revaluakion repart issisd by an ectarnal valuater. The egu-valent value of the inital 543 shareholding was
coenputad by rafarancs ta this faic valse, resuelting in gn amount BOK 22,477,313, which wag ai e basis
af tha Fecagnition of the gain relaed 1o the initet 50% eherehalding.

3.2. Estitnates and azsumptions

The key assumplions cancerning the future and ather kay Bouizes of esdnation uncarainty at the reporing
daie, that hawve 8 signlficart sk of cauelng a matedai aclusmmant 1o the carmying amaunts o7 g3s8s ano
lizbilitizs wetnin the fexl Enarclal year, are descibad delow. The Gmoup basad its assumprions wn
pztimates on paramelars available when the consdideted finencial stetemente wete prepared. Existing
tlzcumsatarces and aasumptions sbout utue developments, hawsvear, iy changes dus to marked changes
or cingumstences ariging thet are bayend tha centml of the Sroup. 3uch changes are refiected in the
essixmptions whan thay ostur.

Revaiuation of propearty, plant and sgquipment and nvestment properties

The Groun cames s inveslment prepardas &t faly valua, with chargez ki fasr value bedang recognized i the
stetement of profit ar ssee. In additlon, It meazures kend and buildings at revalued amavnts with changes in
farir valize being recopnized in other comprehensive ingome. Th Group angaged indepardant valution
specialisis to aosese fair value as at 31 Degambar 2035 for fane and oildings ard for ineestiant
progerbes, WAle acton was perfarmes on &n anndal basia, including as at 31 December 018, [avestmert
crogenizs (land and buildings’ were velued by referencs o markei-basad irfommation, using comparabls
prices sdjuster far spaciis market fastars swesh ag rature, locslan and cordtion of the propearly.

Inyestment propeties {Ian'l:l and bulldinga) were revalred az at 31 December 2014 by an externar valuator,
ar: AMEVAR membes. The vatuation methods used were the market comparigon %or land and the net
renlacement ost impected by the epplicaton of fhe ingeme-fassd method and ihe marke: compansens

Irapairmant of intangible and tangible azsets

To determing whetner the impairmerd relsted o an intengible or tangible asset must be reccgnized,
synifizant judgmant is needead. To teke this declsion, for eech cash genemsting unis (OGN, the Gmup
compares the carving ameount of these intangible ar tlangibie assets, o the higher of the G fair valua
b2as oosts te 58l And &3 vaiue in use, which wil! ba generawc by the imargitle ard angible pasets of the
C3EN GEASrALng uniis avgrk the ramaining usafel fe. The racavarable amaunt used by the Group for each
CEn genarating Linit lor Imoalrment measusing SUIpeees was mpresanied by 18 valua In usa.

_Engllah \ranalatkan bk KT iNSarMBticn purcoasa only. RofraniEn lengaage tasl 2 118 afficlel bt for sumi=slan,
30
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TERAPLAST &0
MOTES TO THE COMEQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fer the financkal year anded 39 Decomber 20HE

3. SIGNIFICAMT ACCOUNTING SJUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {continuad)

fn tha cumest economis snyviro nreent, tho Groud analyzed tha miema: and extéma| sourcer of infermation
400 rescherd the corclusion that there are na indisationa Conceming the impairmart of assets, exsep; for
the cash genarating units below, The (Group considers the refakonshiy setween e manet GRpitalization
ard itz book va:ua, amang ather faclons when raviewlrg for indlcatars of Irpaiment As s result, the GEraip
degided nat to cairy an impainmen: analyas for the recuwersila amaunt o AnRiblo zksets, under |AS 35
Therefore, an allowanss for aseed impa:ment praved not (o be NECES38, Y.

Tha mpairmean: testing perfoirmed by the Grovp 1 basad on ine deternination of ihe value in L
Sansidenng tha presast value of the cash fow, The cash Aows have been determinad hasad on the aget
or 2018 and ok fhe foresasts for the following four years. Tha berminal vslye was gefennited hasad o e
Gash fows [ciucested far 2023, using £ 2.5% growth sste

Tl crals generating wnits iderttfied ana,
* Thz cash generating urit Instaligfians and Arangemente;
*  Tha o=sh gensrating wnit Srandles;
*  The czsh penerating unit PG Jairery Profilag,

The discouni rate zpalied fsr cash fow projactans wads determned b e leyve! of mach cazh gensrating
Lk, sadging from 2.54%, fe 12,345 2017 behwaan 9.02% gnd F1LLZW). representing the Group best
ratimate cencarming the standard Aapplicable to the corcerned achvity. The dizcount rates reprasent the
SUTTEN markst assesemant of the risks spactic ko each cagh geerating Jeir, baking imto consideration the
Hme vallee of monay and mdividusd rieks of the B33218. The clscovnt rala compurtasion is based on e
specific circumsiancas of the Srayg aed its Sparating eegrnenia and & dadvad fam e wakghted avarage
cost of gapdtal,

The Group has cnnsidensd both tha information avara bée in prigr veare, the produstan capaty or eanh
cash gesessting unlt, e consolicatdan af chent relgtionsk ips and the extemal markel cotential.

The ronsidsred average growth rates of the Granip have besn used 39 follows:

*  Fortho 2a=h gererating unit fnstallations and arrandacnents. manegement esimates 3 umever
INZrease, aua fo tha extenzlsn of tha distrioullon petwods, and, it the felawing four years, shz
L 31 geevith rate will be on average 5 423,

* Ferihe cast gerdraiing ualt Granulee, Maragarant fas estimated an annua svorage qradth fror
the fedowing flve years of AT by inczeaging compelitiveness ag a resul; of faveloping naw
nefworks and inateasing the presarce on tha neighbering madats,

* Fod the cash generzting unit Puc frinary Proflles, e avarage growsh rata for the furnever ovir
tite projection perod iz estimated to be 4.83%, folzwing #he implemantaton of rew Co-aatnisiorn
wehnolomles for profiles, which inoraaars for rompativanscs, ood alsa. the ey policy
revis.en.

Business eombinations

A2 3 result of e bueiness sombination, the Group recogiized goodwill ana 'mtangibies reguliae Folloning
8 averzise to determing the fgir value fr =il agae . lianitltles apd contingent liahititles purchased at ke
soqulslicn dats One of the mast irnpactant assezsmant axerclzas is fe datemmination of & fajr value for
e gurchased itarme — sae detallz in Hota 15,

impainnent of gaoaghwit

5 a7dar o daterming e nécessily of recagrizing an imgairmment lose ralsted b e gaadwiil recognizag i
the consclidated financizl statements as a ras-Ji of tha acqulsition of Bepece SRL the Eroup pofomms
gniually rn inpeinant test which reduires sigrificant [usoment.

Therefare, the Company decided to estimate the fecaveialle vaiua of the =ash qareraling unlt Depaca
SRL, sooonding fo fAS 36, A5 g rasbt of tha exercise carried cut it resulied that it i not nacazeany ta record
& provlsion for lmpaiment.

Engizn Farwsdlon & for rforiation ALYEEROR Oy FHernzmian lanauyge best ia the officlsd e far subelesian, — o=
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TERAPLAST 3A

MOTES TC THE CONSGLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

for the finznclal year ended 31 Decembar 2018

{81 Emotes 87 exorBased i Romaniar fod ("RON'G, ufiless olfidretas steled;

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Ealimatirg e recoverabiz vatua as of 51 December 2018 was bazed on detemmining the fair vaue by
mglinzating 42 present value of RS fityra cask: fowe nenerated by Depeoo SRL. The frain @ssympticns
uged 1 datenrina te valua in J2e wera the averahe growh rates and tha diecount rates.

Cazh fiowes wara datermined baget an the budget for 2018 and te saracast for tha teidowing 5 yedrs, walch
ekl an avarage EBITOHA incresse of 1.8%, a0 average Incraase af fukane invastienta in ran-current aseets
ai [,5% and, respaciively, a net working capisal incraase of 12.5% in 2013 followed by ar. ircresss directly
proparéanzi ta the EBITDA increase of % B% during the remaining period.

The Lemrinal veile was set based an the cash fows farecast for a0%4, using & perpetuity iNCrcasa raiw of
2.6%,

The digcourt rate used was af 10.52%, rate comespancing fo the degree of fisk and capita: skuctura of \he
sungiciary. This represenis the current market evaluation af the figks spacfic to the subsdiary, taking in'o
gocaunt the e value of meney and the individual sssat fisxs, Fha computatian of the discolnt rEte s
basad ar: the specific ciroumstancaa of tha subsitlarles a0g it fesults fom its weighted average cost af
capitas.

Ady ghanges occurrat in fne scenomic sanditions may influenca can influence the astmates usad far
detetrmining the watue in uea, ST tat tha actus rasutts may dlifer in the and, Concarning the azlmnation af
the impaimment |aes of goodwill, management cansiders that the moged 1& moat liFaTy semEitive t0:

v tha weighted aversge cost of capital,

+ ha assumplicns congeening the igrminal incressd

s« Te EBEIOA mandle.

The ERITOA rrargin refcts e managernent astimetas ranceming the oparatng profitability of the cash
gerssetng unil, in e with the historca; levels and the market evolution (s level & not disclased dug 13
the staleqin nature of this information). I the increase levei of the EBITLA margln wewd drop by 0.57%,
4o recavarable vaie of the czsh generating unit wald ressh e prefitability threshold.

Alsc, Hve nroiakbility thrashold would be machead if e waid hed average cost of capiial wacls ingrease Dy
0.5% or if tha lammiral ncrease would decraase by 0.52%.

4. REVENUE AND CPERATING SEAMENTS
A analyzis of !h&_erﬁ revenues |5 detailed below

Year atded Yaar endad
3 pacetnher 31 December

2018 -
ROk RN
Sales from ovan producton B34, 720,118 ip4 186.20LG
Revenuss from sale of coramodities 126, 426, 582 42 165,328
Revanues o ather agtivitdes %.£50 724 1,245.8°2
Zmnmersial discounts awarded .. (10.094,230) (5,327 27H]
Total T 8paE12,97  422.270,070
Echiah benslaica |9 %p- ninrnalon purps2as anty. Ramanlan langlage tat = e ohcgl bl [or submassian, [0 ikt
32 g e
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TERMAPLAST &b
WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BTATEMEMTS

for the financial year ended 31 Docember 2018
il ity are crpeosged n Romasdan Lad Q0N unisas nifsreisa stalea)

4. REYEMUE AND OPERATING SEGMENTS (vontinued)
Goographical analyeia

Yedb anded Year ended
3 Bacatrther 31 December

_. 22 11—

RON RON
fimies an tjhe inteme matal (Romanls) Ged 352,774 319,208,310
Sa'es an ihe extarnal market 180155423 123 083,880
Toral o BndS1e 1ET 422 270,670

The irfarsnation i tha cperational policy a5 repartad 1o the management fonm e perepsshive af rasournce
alizoation and seqment perfarmance analysis is classifled agooading it the type of praducts daiivarad. The
raparing sagmants af the Group have been datermlihed accord:.ng to:

s Tha natura af the przductsd ard gervices,

s« Tha nature af tha predustion processeg,

v The typa or catagory of glients far peaducts and senviees;

v Methods used fae distiioiting the progucks of providing the sardizes.

Erngllal fraiedatlon 15 dar Infzrmation purackes anby, FROmenan [erguago et is te ofilcle st for ausmlssza.
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TERAFLABT 34

MOTES T THE CONGOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEWMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 Dacarnber 2018

fall ameimtz e exprossed i Moenian el (MROWY, uniess cifitriise sfabari]

6. SUNDRY INCOME

Financial incoma [ costs

Logs from fareigh exchange differznces, net
ikzr finarsclsl lncarme

‘ntarest tEvanLes

Dividaend ravenues

e financia’ expensag

Firancigl diacounts granted

[nterest expense

Nel Firandcial koas

Other operating income

Lompenaations, fines and penallies
CHner rawenuss

Subaldias incoms

Totel

Yerr andad Year endad
31 Decambar 1f December
) 2018 201%
RGH ROM
yo2E, Bad) (1,584 980]
T3av it B E
H38 1,804
75,200 B1.045
(4525 Bh&] -
(61,868 -
irarheedy | 42.0961,7670)
(3812855 _{3_.53@,_?_'{2[
Year ended Yaar andetl
31 December 31 December
2014 2017
RO Rk
GB35 140,549
08 42T 3 16d G24G
750,552 459,391
1821873 3764386

ir 017, the iine "Cthar ravenues® includes the gain ralated 10 the Politub scguisition: gain frarm the valustion
of the initigl invastment amountng o RON 1,480 541 and the negaive gaodwill amouning wo ROM

1 045283,

8. RAW MATERIALS, CONSUMABLES USED AND COMMOBITIES

Fiay material avpansss
Lgnaumabla xpenzes
Commedily expenses
Consurmed packeging
Total

Yaar andsd Year ended
3 December 31 Decerbar
2mg 2017
RO RM

Ag2, 124548 ZET 553 203

ae 000 443 15 570,250
174,540 848 5,505,754

_ aT11,235 714,728
&5, 376,072 313,344,060

The incresse of axpensas by RO 292 milien has s man cauges: e 100% consolide®ai of Depaco SRL
RO £85 millize), Lhe integraton of the Polimb buslness line withie Teraplsl SA4 staching 1 Qotober 2077,

ke gevelopment of e business In Seetsa (ROM 61 million).

Eng 1540 tarsalica = fuor Irfannalen pepesas ‘:II'I-IL;.. Femnanian IENFiRge st = ibe affeal ket o zubmessian
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TERAPLAST B4,

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL ETATEMEMNTS

for the financial year ended 31 Docember 2018

finl sRicunte @ ednddned i Remaiizn Leat PRON'E il othenwse sfater)

7. ATHER GAINS AND LOQSSES

Year endad Year ended
3 Dgcemiber 3t Dacember

2048 QT

RON RON
Fevanues oo the disposal of Hw aginle and intangible sssats 2,045 118 4[5, 130
Exprenzas with ke dispazal of tangibee and irlangice assets 12,032 855) (402 YR
(=ais from revatiation of tanglble astels . -
Nat logs from the dispasal f reveluation of Rargibie and intangtble
assels 5K A2 367
Zair: from the falr vaiue meastrement of invastrmant progeries . R3S
Lewiat, g fodr valug iraasurement of investmant propartles [2e5,562) -
Net gain / Hoss) fram veluation of nvestment properties at Falr T i -
watue .. _|245 5532) 33s

8. EXPENSES WITH PROVISIONS, IMPAIRMENT ADJUSTMENTS AND AMORTEZATION

Yoar cnded Year ended
3 December 3% Dacember

.. 2018 2017
ROM RON
Expensesz with Aon-curient seseds impairmart 11,254 955) (1,319,067
Fevairues from reverzat of non-comart gasets impairment 434 1449 439, GO
Srncstizabion #nd dapreciation exparszs (29,739,450 (18,221 754}
Net adjustments for non-current aasets impalmont . [30.,800,206) {19,100,365}
irvertary Impaiimeni expensas (4,315 43488 [4,283,£33]
HavenJes from inveatedy impairmen raversal 4325063 2,331,438
tet adjustments For inventory [mbalmnant (4098 375 {1.962,204)
Expenaes with currart sesets i palrment {3.453.008) 1,433 555
Renvaiues frar cusrent assats impsicment raversal 308033 501580
Current sscahvables onargod 16 @xpeEnsss (B4, A5 0 il
Net adjustmants for current assets inpaintant (1050428 480,813
Pravisions expanses (512,009 {125,185
Ravanues fram provislieons reveras: { cancaliatlon ... BEEXE 2,738 G145
dsl adiustiments far praviglons —_.. lzoB730) 2,614,461
Erqlsh ranslatian B MF oA purgnsee snly Roranlgn |p,51!£|;].3|-;-e s i5 Ehe oflciEe: 16wer op coalrmmmn i, r:q*‘"!_‘**lﬂvtr-h:;|
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TERAPLAST A

NOTES T0 THE SONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for tha flnancial year andad 31 Becember 2018

il amacints am cxoreagsd in Romartiae Lo FAOAT, ormiees offierwise st

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENZES

Year ended Yeaar andsd
31 Decemper 31 December

2R 5
RGN RO
Wages B2 528,213 H1.261.%040
Contributicne to fae public secigl security fund 357020 Voaaraa
Meal tickeis i 2208 831 5. P45 071
Tatat BB 405,348 40,548,001

10. GTHER EXFENEES

Year ended Yoar ended
31 Decamber 31 December

. aMs 201T

RO ROk
Transpxt cosls 29.453 184 13 BRE, BES
Expenses with utilies and graen cerfificates 9,436,746 8,706, 3492
Exparses wiih third party 2envicas 13857 224 B,A01.977
Expenses with compensations. fines and penatiies B1.623 GE T
Entermisrmsnt. praimation ard advertising Sxperees 5,155 555 2415770
Cther genssal 2xpensss 2 BE3, 454 1878785
Expanses with othar taxes and duis=s 207 177 1,171,356
Repsir expenses 3,083,144 16231646
Travelling sxpenses 4,430,385 1.032 822
Rent expereas 3024 460 ED Y 4TS
Meil snd telecommEnEGation edpanses 752,756 £hE, 723
InEarance premidm axpanses 1.855,32%2 o212, G2
Soonsorehip expelEos 12687090 10168038
Totat 785,010,673 _ 41266,634

1he incresse of expanses by RON 3 milion has as makn casses: the 100% consaldafion of Lepeca ERL
(RO 15 eniliion), e integration of dhe Polijub business fine intn Tedapret A staning 1 Ogabsr 2017, the
developrment of the business In Serbia (ROM 3 millien). 1y additior o these. the inoreaza of these expenses
is algg awad fa the Group manegement's daclsien o iniensify, for devatesrmant purpeses, the prometan
ard matketing activities, the incraase of the expenses relatad to insurances. especially cansarming wrads
cecaveles, g5 well as the significant increase of power and green cerificpte tariffs.

Ergliar i ansletian I ar IT°SMREIEN pUrpases only. Pomarian lBrguage et 13.5he off cal e “or subrmsesan.
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TEAAPLAST 3A

WOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FIMNAMCIAL STATEMENTS

tor the financial yoar ended 31 Bacamber 2018

P ENnunty ere oxupressad in Romanfae Cer (PRON'L uninss alllenwlse staled)

1. INCOME TaAX

The total axperss jor the yerr may be reconciled wisk, tha szeocnting proft as follows:

Period ended  Parlad anded
21 Dacember

3t Decenthrey

218 2mMT
RON RON

Profit heforetax. T 26,159,273 20,011,711
[azcene tax caloulstad a7 16% (2017, 18%) 4185 501 3,204,574
Hems assimilsted ba income 2EDELG 338,947
Dreductions (3,042 s 2 AP 02T
Mo taxable incarme [3. FER 2T 13,301 8c1)
K- deduclible axpensas 8,336,393 5,915,866
Gponscrshilp e cnedi) [1.249.490) (748,737}
Total income Lax at the effeciive rate 13.5% (2017:14%)  3E20.E73 2,638 582
CUSTENS (RGeMe Lax recogtlzat e arofit gnd 1058 acoount - eupanss 4,193,140 3165558
Dadarrad income 13 — revenue BT AT f357.278)
Takal income kax - expensa 3520673 2,038,382

The iz <ate appfied foe the recorgibafor mentioscd zbova ralaked b 20153 sad 2097 8 16% and 15 sayvatls

by Ramanian legal anifies. Accarding ¥a the Ramaniazn tx legqisabion e 0ss may pe carfied o
far saven vaars for dee tay [0sees racorded aflar 1 Janwary 2008, stading wilh the vear wher they conured.

[ereBieal Serois recorded Mscel Ioss dunng tha first yeer of Retivity The faxation ree it Serhia iz 103 ard

the fizcal 2ss may oe carrled forward for five vears,

The componanls of tha net deferred tax liabiities

Recordad ta

Opening  the Incor Closing
T _balance  _ siatement baiance
ROMN ROM ROM
Tangikle ard infenginle assets and nvesiment propeities 4 285 BIG] 3,744 {4159 652
Inventaras - - -
[rrvastimanls in siobeidaries 372.EM 23400 Ja0 024
Emglevee cerai kanllites 117 36T 2.083 115,446
Trace and aimilar payables arsTed 198,07 A7Z B3l
Het fiabilifies with deferred tax recogtiired (5.627.868) 320,408 (2,.207,482)
Egssh Iranslatan & b nfomation pupcsas ofly, FOmanan [Bngnage teet 15 the otolal szt for SUBTSSiz. - roaw g ata.sd. i, 0 |
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TERAPLAST 5A

NOTES T4 THE GONSTLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2018

(A arnouwds Bre expdiesssd In Romaniss Lo PR, urnlesn chhanedse Stated)

14, INCOME TAX {comtinuad}

Ragislared in
Recordad n ether Tha
Crpentng the Income  comprabensive  apquisitian of Clasing

2013 balanca atatergeHt _income Depaeg _ _ balaneg
Tanglble and intenglble assts
ard inveslment properties (4,156 682) 109,824 136,963 (B442OTE)  L10423,658)
Fiw=l 0a2 - 7o B0 - - 736 duE
Inveetmznts n Jubsidianes R I w32, COT; - - 15,0368
Erneloyes kenefii fiablllice 18 4482 AT.431 - - 177 288
Traxda &ncl similar pavablss _ 47aRat _ _OASIE - - E¥ G, St
Best NabaHilaa with defarmd tax
recognized . {3207482) BTTATT 136,948 (64BZ.S7H} _ {8,8HE584)

Tha decrease of defared tax under Lhe *Investmenta in subzklarnies” item i due @ the changss in the
Comazny's investreents held as a result af the aurchese of 49.95% moee o Politub, the inwesirsent a3 af
the wnd of 2017 and 2012 belng of 33.95% (2016 BO%1,

'ha decreass of gefarmed tax wndar the ‘Flecal loss” Hem represenis ke deferrad tax for the flacal 55
registarad in the Teraplest 54 subsiigfy amaounfing t RON 4,340,007

i . - - - P - .- .-|..F- ' !
Ergliah franalaten ig Far IrfoTmasian purposes anly, Remarlen IgngLaga te is the officler et far Ewbmizzinn R R e
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TERAPLAST 5A

MGTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for tha financlal year ended 37 Duvcember 2018

vl inninle & cxpreazen i Rariaidan Le! RO, sirkass ilerwise siafai)

14 PROPERTY, BLANT AND ECQUIPMENT (cottinued)
The tangibla asse:a purchased Lroug leeses include vebicles and aclipment, as fatmyg:

<1 December 31 December

2014 27
ROMN RON
MNer value - yehiolee 1,507,654 1,565 803
Nt valoe - equlpment 435,005 1535867
Total 2398648 3.SITETQ

A3 at 31 Dugerber 208, the Group hag pledgsd in fevar of dnancial inzttdllons ron-currant agsete znd
Invegirent propseties with & net carring amount RON 3,640,378 (31 Decemipay 201 7: RON 35 882 237,

The land and buiidings wers revatusd a3 st 31 December 2016, The G maragement declded skhey
represenied 3 single clmss of asxate for fair value revaluztion pupcses UNcar IFRS 13, This analysis leak
it consigarslan the characteristics and rigks azsotlatad 1o the ravaluad praportez.

A3 8t 31 Decaniber 2077 and 241d. the managenent analyeed wih the assismnoe of an author.zer
walustar, whether & new revalugtizn of land aad gulikknge was necessary Becsuse tha difsrencas baween
the fair varue aind the carrylng emaunt wauld be ingignificant, the managament decidad not io pedform 2
naw revatuation of 2 Group kad ard buildings.

lm 2017, Lha Group signed = gramiss o 32l cetalt Aazers hed in Calati {lznd and buildings) with a net
camying  amouni ROW BRI 245, Acsiording to IFAS 5 these aszals were reclsssified as at
21 Recembar 2017 frare: tangible aswats nio azeets hald for sala 2ad were vatuad aithe ciasslfloaton data
g1 the lowear of the net carmying aricunt 2nd the fair value minws the soat to eell.

2070 the CGroup concluded a sale promise for assets haid in Dtaneni (land and buildings) having a nel
book value of RGN 1,885 S81. ACcorting W tFAS 6, thaza aseets ware reclassified as of 37 Decerber 20145
Friveii Largible assets irte assels bewd for 2ala and they were mensured st reciaaalication date ar the lawest
netieen Lha nat book vaiue and the fair value [ass e coste ganersted b five aale.

Tha Impsirment adiusiments get it 2018 related o asecta nol usec. As at 31 December 2018, the Zroug
had spocthc recordat Impairmean: mdjusttienca for tanglala agsets |n ar emount BON £.312 454 (20T
RON 3.083 BAE).

Srlish tarsallon e Fx irinrakisn purp-:lae:a |.~'-|I_-.- n'-'cnrr-aﬁl.an'-'anguage tel = ther aMiclal deat for subimiEs o,
43



TERAFPLAST SA

MOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the ftnancial year ended 31 Decembor 2018

fai amounis are sxortsgen M Momaman Lad (RO, owess affisst Saiedl

13. INTAMGIBELE ASSETS

Licenseg and  Intanyible
gthet intangiblea assots In
_Gondwill assets progross Tota|

Gﬂst F - —_—
Balarce ag at 1 January 2017 - €,030,198 6,618 5,036,816,
Ineeeagas, out of whish: - 482 432 287,110 789,982
Hakituo acoutsition - 2830 - 2,680
Transferz info / from tangible azes1s [

proJress - 29023 J290651) .
Qizpaeals and athar dacreases - {17 542, (17,542
Balance ag at 31 Degember 2017 - bBT85 168 3,087 8,789,268
Balznce as at 1 January 2018 - 6.7BE.1EE 3,007 B,7E9.RGE
nereesss, act of whilch: 35234 534 55,BE85.892 faancs AL 010
Tepact acquisiton, gl of which: 35,231,533 36,065,307 - 1,314,146
« Goodwill 35,2363 - 36230538
- Wattarbas: brand - 27,351,076 - 2TAEO7E
- Cammercial relations - 7427 244 - TMAEY 844
Transfers irda f frem tanglole azsets in

DrOHESE - 333183 [342d7H] 10,684
Dispasais and other decreasas . O A P 1) - {216,138}
Balance az 81 21 Daceamber 2014 5,730, 5. &3 JB0,08E 404,897 _T5.124 651
Cumulated amortization I

Balance as et 1 Januvary 2017 - A 885,213 .. 4. 665 313
Arrftlzation expanse - 479 F45 - 479,245
Lecreasas - (7545 - (17 542}
Balance az st 31 Dacembat 2007 - 5,128,916 - B, 128818
Bailznce as at 1 January 2013 - 5126916 - 5136818
Amorizetion expanse - 2545.735 = 2,583,736
Oepeco acqulsifion - B3, 7T - 803 772
irmspaicment nE - 58
Uecreases - (215 603 = (215606}
Balance az at 21 Decatriber 2018 o 8.110,874 - 5.110.31"-!
Met carrying amount
Az at 31 December 2017 - 1859253 3087 | 1662350
Ax at 31 Dacembrer 2016 35 230,E39 35,378,211 404,857 71,012,831

Al the date of purchasing the majenty package of Depaco SEL company, esceding ko the vatuatiar repord
issued by &n extarnal appraiser, n the f2ir veluve of the Depaca unic the Yvatterbast brand and the cient
relationships have also been recognizee (Ffor furtier datails, sea MNota T5).

In the comsaldated firanciat statements ag of 31 Deoembes 2018, the intangible assets recagnized 25
rest:lt of purckasing Bepacoe SRk are ingladed in otner int2ngloles azsets.

L
vl LT LT A L

|15 am

LT L LITH AT T
| [Tl :::_Ij.lu-:. J.'l'l*l'-'\"\-

Errylich wanalallc 16 (or IMGmElon pLpeses anty. Remanian Brguags fexdt i Enes efficsal Lt for aberesor. |
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TERAPLAST 54

NOTES 10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fot the financial year ended 21 Dacamber 3048

(A ARUFS ArA enares s in Somenin Lo (RO, uniasa che e stated)

14, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

invesihiant proparias include tha fallawing lkems;

v The Group inlds g picca of [2nd and @ build ing, EIeaked in Romana Streat Ml (praviously uasd
lar the hezd cifise), Starian 2012, the final purpes afthe lzand was o be kel in acder o obiaie a0
NCrRese i ite value ard o be supsequenty mators:ied thraugh sele. Az @ resulf, the land wes
ceasaiied in Januaty 2012 az an Invesiment propeny:

* The pisce of land ook aver from SC Teracota Bistrida SRL Efter it peeamz bankruat locatee in
Birmita, Dourw’ Cawzlll 16 held i order to obtalt an inereass in it value ard i be subsaquently
rnatenmazad through saia. Aa g rascl, the jand was glassited in Decembar 2017 g5 an investreant
proaerty, bamg waied at @i velue as of that arz:

* The Groun noids dand and bulldings (previcusly used as fegional wasehouses! | Constanta, o
Jaruary 2013, tha mansgement degided that the Snal parsose of thaza lznd and buildings was to
b neld irsarder io obtain ar incroaze and vaiua and to He SUbasgquently materizlized theough sale.
Asa reelt the lend gnd buildings wara classified in 2053 as irvestmant prosarlles,

A3 231 December 2018 ard 2017, the talr value of investment properties 'z based an the valuation repcit
araparad by zn irdependent valdatayr and e imozct of thls velyation was charge:d in he prodit and iosg
Aaccourt, Tha valussion methcds ysag ars coangliant with ine Intemational Yalvaton Standards.

For land, the vzl:atien performed songiderad the manket COMPAriEon appeach, 55 follows:

[iice par soudre matar for land range EUR 15 - 135 Jeg. 7,

Fair valie of buidings :eeufing from tha income 2poreach as follows:

Rent far industriai and sommercisl premisas EUR 2.5- 5589 m.
Nan actupancy rote for iogietic and industrial premises T —=15%
Average rala of retim far Caisgary 1! Cijes 90— 10 %
Mweedge rate of «efum for Categary ik Cileg 9.5 - 10,8%

Yoar anded Year endod
21 Dagember 31 Dacember

2019 _ 2M7

RON RON
Upening halanes at 1 Januery ____BFIILE6E 9765015
Aadiions / (dispagals)h 1 251,877} 36,853
Pl rariatian frotn valugtion of invesfment propeies at fair value (slate {245 aid) - |
Closing balanes at 31 Cocamber £.324388 0,794,568

HT Juna 201 8. Lhe space ik Oradea which, a3 of Decembg 2017, was lncluded in the Inyestmant prapety
balance sheet fem wes reclassifizg under "Tanglble aszsets’ as a result oF the fact thst dhe Carapany
decided to recormenca ihe oparaing actlvity in this lecation, As a result, the *lAvesiment Eraparty® baiance
gneet ltam reglsiersd n decrease of aporoximately ROMN 1,200 thausang.

Cagzisn Irarakalian & for nfeseeion PLyposcs ary Romanien Arguage rest |9 the oizial bt for gebmiss'an. ;
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TERAPLAST 5A

ROTES 70O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the ftnancial yaar ended 31 December 2018

sall simounts &rE Errpraa.'-:ed " !REq:lmeu:Jar. Lo FRONT, bmess clhoridse Sfafed;

15, BUBSIBIARIER AND OTHEHR FINANCIAL INVESTMEMNTS

A% al 31 Decamber 2018 and 21 Decerber Z0%7, the parant Ralds the feliowing invesimente:

Hrld g Holding
Place of zat- percoentaga percentage
up and of M December 31 Dacembor
Subsidrany __Dperations _ Main activity 2018 . a7
(%} (%}
iy vp Biadelbe : Heat insulating panel
Tasastesl & Bistrits Romznia production 07 95 57 a5
) L . Heat insyiadng woinsry
Teragrass Bisirta SA Famania pioductiar 160 100
Paoiitub Sa Hamagnig Farvathyers plaas productian BB .58 3955
Teranlasl Loglstle SRL Ramania  Logistice! services L g4
Teraplast Hungasia Hurrgacy Distibutar 100G puls]
o , . Heat msulating panal
Tarastes DOD Sarbia Herhia pradustian 104 159
Depaca FRE Fomaniz  Metal trle praduoestion e EQ
Cortina WTH SRL Fomaniz  Metal dle producEan a1 -

During 217 and, respectively, 2018, the following changes took place |n e Conpany's invesmanks:
1. Depaco SRL

Qr: 1 Margh 2017 Teraplkast has concludad & confrast with the sharehalders of Depaco SRL 10 purchass
B0% of its capital shares, Suzseguently, Teraplast acquired another 173% af fhe Depece SRL sharss, the
irvestmartt being digclasad tn the Siatement of Finencial Pogition under Othar flnarclal assets. As at
31 Becember 2017. this sharehoiding was not moorgad with the Trade Register, therefare control over
Diezpzicd is jaist with thes othér sharehaiders,

The transacton was completed aftor its appeoval by the Sharshalders’ Generzl Meeting of Taraplast 54
ard ater receiving e approval of the Romanian Cempattan Counail.

Faliowing the epproval from the Soempetitiza Caurall Fer thie sale contral over Depaco. in January 01E, the
Oepace grocp s being consolidetad ints the financial statarnents Browgh the global method.

In Movembear 2017, Teramast has canclutied & sale-purghess promise witlt #we minoriy shareholders of
Depaco, for the rest of their investment up to 99% of the company Bz mertioned ia Note & SIGNIEICANT
AGCOUMNT NG JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS, aven thoLgh, basad gn the contrachal
clauses, ibe trenaacton will b2 carried oul Ih 4 yaars at most, at the date of faking cortol, Teraplzst has
racognized st a tadiily the obdigadon resulfing from this gontrect and the value of the apllon a8 pet of the
Furchaze prise, Cansaquatitly, for consoiidaton purposes, e minanty interestz are 1% o Depaco graup's
net conaoddared asset purchased.

Dapaco 15 tha secand largest player an the Romanlan matzlic tile market trough the Watesbest krand.
Dapatco groun coprisas the Depaco SAL compary and the Cartina WTE SRL company, with a halding
percentags oy Depaco SBL of 51%.

Tha Gioup aztassas the value of minorty iterasts propartianally freem the Feir valie of the nat atzet of the
annaaligated companies.

Engism trar=asn (9 <3 INfannatich purpabes aaly, Romaran language 180 (5 M8 off el bl 16¢ subrrassmn P
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TERAFLAST SA
NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
foi the financlal yoar snded 31 BacemBber 2018

5. BUBBIDIARIES AND OTHER FINANGIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

Az @ rerict of ke parchase of G7% of the shargs 518 of tha sale-puichase promise mrentoned abgve, tha
droup coneclidates the Depaco sub-group cansidering sn Ivestment of 99% from: the 2coizillon dzte
Fallersang the consaldation of the Debses sub-group, the Sroup has registered gaodvill emenniing o R
30.730,838. ar posiiva difference batween the consldarasion paid a4, respectively . deferrad and tha taic
wizlu= of ha ret asaeda taken fior the sumenarized Flaancial information of the suisidia nr Dupacn 881 21
the datm of ciainiag coenirol, namely 1 Jaruary 2045 ara presented baiow:

The fair value of the assets purchased and Habilftiaa undertaken Bt acqulsltion date

3 December

M7
Imtangibla agseis 25,578 350
Tangiale azsets AT S
Finaacial investrmants BT 15
I"uentcries 4+ 107 951
Frade ard Fer raceivables 15,003,541
rEpaytnanig 245,553
Gash and bark pospunta 8BB4 216
Long-maire: Aafidilles o735 045
wlrrent labitities AD2ET S5
Tatal net idenilfiable asests, at Fair value 7555550

The astimaticn of ta market valug of Depaco SRL 2 tha nats of obaining tontrol was basad on applylog
the DCF method, for whish he main working assumplions include the Hudgaled EBITDA, Ihe incresse
ratas, e operating mangins, tha neecs af warking eapital end the gistoun: rakes, for & forecast parlod of 7

WG,

The foir valva ef the sesets snd dabdities obfained ac puchase cate, 3z welr as the fsir value of e
subsidizry Depace SRL, wara dememired by AN indaperdant appralser Fair valus ajuatnenis wars
deemiod necessany, as follows:

Intangible ggsnts

The estmatior: of the falr velue of lha intangible asse’s heid by Depaco ard rapiatarad in s Sompamy's
RlaneE aNeel as o7 the valuation date was set at tha lavel of their hei book valee.

In addition to the exsting :ntangisle assets, intanplbla Basets ot registered In the Contpany's balance snost
ai L valuasion dats ware onified, a5 iollmys:

= Wattarhest Brand: fre valuaiior of the brand amouniiag o RGN 27,351,076 was dore thiough
the: roiaily aconamy method, with an estimated usefuf e of 20 vears, beng = tend wits a
tonselicetes market posltian, oparating in & stabla buziness fleid;

o CHent lists; the valuefion of the glient lists amey MHing ta RN 7427 844, was parformed fhrough
re suralis aconomic barsfits mathad ag aelng the discourtad cash flow value adribitabla to the
intanglte asset after the dacrease 9f the cash fows atiritutatls b ather assats, with an estimates
L3edlel il of 240 years, on the gravnds of a fgereus analysls of ihe rates of refurn, rates of ratention
and, respectiyely, fluchetorn,

-El'-glish eranglgton & o afarmalion parsases sk, Romandan angusgs bt 16 thes afficiad et for aubmisscn, AT o -|
A7 - .
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TERAPLAST 3A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS

forthe firanciat year ended 31 December 20158

[ Shoditel s S euriBssed i Romantas Le) LA, wiest eltierwise siated?

14, SUBSIDIARIEE AND DTHER FINANCIAL INVEETRENTS (comtinuted)

Tangible agsetz

The vazuation of land ard buildirgs was bsesd oo the merket sempeison method, while fof the pyvsiuation
of improvements, of sguipment for which thara s Iksutticient iofermaiion on the market to be able ©
E5HMaE mare: vallie, the estimation of the net repiacameant costwas aimed ai within the cost approach.

The fair valua af e tangibla aseets a2 of th2 purchaze dste was conslderad as halhyg RON 25 704,107,
BON 191946 lower a5 compargd ' therr nel bogk welus az of the purchase daw amountng o
FOM 25,386,052,

Financial invesimeonts

Depace helds 57% of the capiial sharez of Corting WTEB SRL, extablished in 2013, with & book vefue of
RON 5,10C. The mein acivily of Cortinag i represented by tha productan and commercieltizetion of the
readfing systems, sarving tha South-Eastem part of Romantia,

A5 of the purshazz dete, equties registered in the fmanclal siataments of Coting WTE amounied 1o
ROM 1,857,870, Tharefore, &2 of the purchase daie, the fair velue of the 51% investment hald in Gepacs
arnacnis o RON 947 518,

The fair value of the agseis purchesed and liablitiez underiakan at tha date of purchase — Coring

31 Decamber

27T
Total asselz 3,881,846
Tangitle asses 538, 205
Intangible asses 1,178
IFvencriss 1.4833,1403
Trade and aifer receivables 1,308,333
Erapaymenis 14,319
Cash and ahortterm deposiss 135,412
Tertr] labilities e J2023 76T}
Long-term Fabities CET 2]
Current liabiitios M1 ESF52E)
Met book asseta _ . 185Y 839
Equity, out of which: 1,857,873
Tolal equily attibutabie o Depsco SRE (515%) 847 518
Eauity atnbutak.e ta nar-cattroling interssta (409) 210, 351

CHrrant asssts

45 & residt of the vafuation repart, the net Baak value of inveniones, rade meslvables, other receivables,
prepaymerts ard cash end cash equivalents represant a reliable estimetion of iF-2 fair value of fess assete
at tha valuation dala,

Englist ranalsrn (6 17 IRTemIatian prGo4ss sy, Romanan arauEges 1 is e oftcal [ o ebsesan, |
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TERAPLABT 24

BOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lor the financial year endsd 31 December 2018

Jall ewits ane Exie s b Aamanian Ll PRGN, wrlass ateraise stofie)

15, SUBEBIDIARIES AMD OTHER FIMANMCIAL INVESTMENTS {eontinired)
Crrerent liabifities and long-tarm itabilities

11 ret hook values of cument Yzbilites anc of ang-ier llabiliies are consltered o refllect their fair velue:
atth2 caw of vislation,

A% 4 rzsult of the husinezs valuatian, in the yallation répart, 4 daferad @x amounting (o RON 5,715,414
w32 Anmazel, hased an the diferssce bebween ke curent taxable vatue of the ass=is ond the texalle
vall afier idenifying tha band, the cllart relations ard the gdjrslimerte of the valee of likzncia! non-ourrert
masels by avplyirg ke fagsl laxation rate,

The value of the consideratlan at he date of arbtaining the contrgl

1 ha fair value of tha gonaideration at the date af pumthase 15 represEnied by
d] The purchase price palu for the mvestnent of 679 amauntng to BEUR 12,250,000, respactively
RN B 554,457, and
bi Tha fair vaive of the geferar cansideration for P1a additional irvestment of 32% of at least CUR
10,060,000, respecivaly RN 45 527 375

At flz2 <date =f gbtaining the sontrol, * January 20F4, the fair valve of the consideraton paite far fhe initial
Wreestment pusshased in 2017 did nat suffer any chenges in 7elation o the book value gf f1e investmens.

The vazua of the deferred esosiceration was not reflactad as &f 3+ Dacamber 2017 in tha Group balznoe
shert ginco s ewarcise waz alse soadltioned by #e faverabis agreement of the Com pettion Counce! far
S0k Conirol.

Ag af 31 Dacemaer $018, the Goup [as recognized undar the «Lang-1amn liabilties” baisnce sheat pogitian
e discounted vame of the lizbiy the Compeny commifitet 1o pay according by this long-tem
uncarktanding and Lhe cansideraiion for the capital haras it is entitled §o eogordlng o the Promise on
Meresimlzer 2017 wes feated 2 beirg conslderard defemad, e Furchasisig Ee 32% inveatment.

TheTair valee of the conslderation agraesd for g rmirimum price of ELR 10,000,000, corelated with Depacs 3
resuts in the fallawng years wies determlned e being fhe arssent velue of the nash Bows foracest far
Drapace, durirg she ayreed 4-year haszen, o ralation 1o he addifionsl iTvestment of B2,

A5 07 31 December 2018, the vaiue of e defered conslgaration for e rdditiona: investrmen of 355 was
restated Al fair balue, on the basis of the samea feBganing, aatairing an axpenees in profit and loss of RON
GO GE2:

T SaEnbary 2015 -
11 fair value of tha promise fof the 32% imvestment 443 REY 376,

Finariial expenses resulted fram discountleg tha fir valie (454, B52)
1 Dacambar 2048 —45,022.037]

AHocatlon of the purehase price

I Aaccordanna with IFRS 3. it case of a bugihass semaliaksn, the ohtzlna: will recogitlze the goodwilt znd,
razaeglvaly, ke gsins frym en acvastegeous purehase at the acosizition cata, computsd as clferrnce
Lasween the sutn uf she ams ¢ B-G) &nt il

i) The fair valua of the cons!deration tramsferred at the acquisition dets;

iy The Fairvaiue af any minarity intereats In the entity catained a5 of tha acquisifizn date;

{o) The Farr value of the investmant in the 2uily held previously by e obtainer in the cbtaingn antiby

zk af the teowieition dats — not apotieahle:
(@) The fair value of the assels obtaingd and labilites undertaien at tha acnu=sition date.

—_——

Erglish warealion is far infor1-alich purpoaes untiy. Renarian langrage gl 19 the ofical e <or simmimsion: p——
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TERAPLAST 5A

HOTES TGO THE CONSOLIDATED FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS

tor the fingncial year ended 31 December 2018

i armetilits 3ra exprasaad in Aomiamid Ly CRONY, untsas offenwise sinbedl]

.....

15, SUBSIDIARIES AND GTHER FIMANCIAL INVESTMENTS {continued)

“The conzideration trangferrad in exciange for e 50% nvestrent
The considerstion treneferiad in exchange for the 17% investrant
The consicerstion tranefamad :n exchange for fng 32% invastmant
Tha fair valua of the totel coneidamtion of 99%

Tz fair value of tha minodity interests (1% of the net asoet &k value)
The fait value of the subsidiary et acquisiticn daie

31 December
217

39,163,540
17,456,625
43,527,375

_ﬁilﬂﬂ'ltﬂ.ﬁ

LIS EGE
105,727,398

Tre net bock vaiva of the purchased assels 0 GRE. 553
Goodwill obtained at acguisition 35,230,838

&g of 31 Lecember 20128, gaodwill was tested for impairment, merz infarmation belt dlsciazad i Note 3.

The costs ralated o the acguigition transactiar of the Irvestment in Depacn SRL wera recagrizad diractly
in profitand loss when incarred. Thay represented financial. legai ant hatary advizory services camed out
for finalizing the tranezstion and they wene recogrized in other £xpenses with ssrvices pravided by third
paties (Mot 10} The entirz Brnawnt relatzd to dhe acguisiton {cortingency end expansas) af FLOM B4 BAe
ihpugana was paEid gs of tha baiaace shest éale fiTom this araourt, e atrszunt of RON 1275405 was paid
in 2016, the res: being transfamed in 2017,

Simtting with tha date of taking control and untli 34 Decermber 2014, Depaca Group cantlbutad & turnaver
af RO 251 900 thousand and a grass proflt of BON 7,338 thousand t2 Ee Group's resalts,

2. Balltudl: 34

Tha Gtoua hald unbl September 2047 0% af the sharaz of a jointly contolled entity, e Paiitub 54, having
qead office In Bistrita. Rormania. Starfing Ovtober 2017, Teraplast SA becama tha malosity sharehaider of
Lol 548, with 2n invesmeat of 99.53%.

Folizwirg the ipkeaver of Paitub 3A, compsny handling the pesdoction of rmed-um and high density
poiyetiylens pipas for water and natural gas transportlransmilssion and distibutorn neasorks, but alsa for
BlEstrmmUications, sewerage aystems ar irfigationg, the Sroup 18 abla to prowvide the entine enge o ppas
Far constructions and infrastructura.

1) '.-r'."_chi?-mll'-"ﬂuiﬁ'-
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TERAPLAST 52
MOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
far the Dnancial year ended 31 Decembar 2058

if. BUBSIARIES AND OTHER FINANGIAL INVESTMENTS icontinued)
The fa17 value of the assetz and liakilities of Politub SA af acquisition data was:

A0 Septembar

2047
Mes-current agamts 17,131,560
Ifweniories 5,138,803
Tizde and cther receivablas 14,1 73,450
ash &nd oash ecufvabents 2547 G55
Totzd 35,386.193
Trade and oiben payatias LR A
Provigiang . 8054978
Fotal . 10,431,472
Tatal net assat at b1 valua 24 Q88 025
T Fir walue of G0% of e net assets purchased 13,477 513
Purchase caat for the past of 503 11,432 280
Megative goatwill 1,045,263
The fair value of e imvastment preriom of S0 12477 515
The hook vaiue of tha lnveatniert of 500 11,316,873
Gain form the vetuation of the initial iInvestmesd o 14460841

Frum the dgie of taking over the control and until 87 Dacembar 2047, Potitub 54 has contrituted wits 3
wirnoyer of R B 832 thousand and & gress proficof KON 114 housand io the Grour's results. Hae Pitua
=4 been takar aver at the beginning of tha Baanglal yeer, it would Bave cantrbuted a tumover of ROR
28,1815 thouzand ahd & grass kss of RON 1,713 thausand to the Group's rosults.

The transastcn hes genesated coste of agproxmately BON 332 thousend related to flnancial, l=gal
cansLting and e notery senvicks provided for oomplating fne tranzactsn, They werg recognlzed ir- ather
i pErty aervices (Mate 14}, The entire amacnt related to the acquistion (caneiderasion and BXpanses) af
HOM 11,437 thousand was paid &t the balaaca sheet date and thars a7 na giner commilrents o
continganclas ralated to this ransastizn, The gain obtained from the trarsection was cwe to tha wish of
the: farener pastner to lemve the Romanian merket, 85 it is no ongar a metet of interest

Eitlvey Faeptern fuangie! Divactmanis

Datalls goncernag sthar finzncin! investments of Teraplzst 54 ame he feilowing:

Ipewegtmant 21 December Ehvestmant 31 Becernber

tnvastment nare Couritry | share 2048 ehars T
" ] e ROM
CERTIMNI S, Rorrseid TED 14,400 A 14400
Aartnerzhip for sushaesble devalopimend Rormana .14 1,000 T.14 1,990
Tesz Tools SRL Formania 24 T Dir 77
Tz fssocialion of Mefal Paneds Praduges  Fomania 11141 . 1,400 1141 1,000
46472 - 1eATr

The: LERTIND Carnga:y is an incapendent cerification dody accradited by the Grask Actratitation Bocly
—ES70 for the izilewing gedification sarvices: canificadon of gualty managenent syslams acenrding to
150 800, ceetificatizn of environmnant manegemen: systeme acoarding be BE0 14304, carlification af food
sfayy manegemant systema according te 350 22000,

Eryglink: frarebaion & 16r 1 ialion pireass oriy. Famanian Grauzgs e 12 1 ofcal i for sabmislon. T gpe—n e
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TERAPLAESY 5A

MOTEE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 31 Decembee 2613

ol .a.w_.al:_tgr_qusre ENWRESST N RMnamien Led 0N, inilpss u.l'hen'rf.sa st

15, SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMEMTS (conttnuad)

Teraplast SA dig nzi urdertake any 2hligations and did ned make any payment on behad of the entites in
wlicls it holds sescrities in the foran of investmants,

=he other Group campanies do not have ary fingnc'a: Inastends,

T6. JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTIFY
A of 3 Decamber 2017, the Growp held 0% of the share capital of the Depacn SRL CaMmpany.

- he Invastren in Depaco SRL was initaly recognlzan at purchass sost. The value of Hie invesiment is
adjusted as of 31 December 2017 e regogrize tha investrment. of Taraplast Group in tha resilt of ine
sssoviate at the purshase Jate.

Fallcning the prrchese of the rilal investment of S0% in Bapece SREL 2 gosdwill of RON 18,512 424 weas
inciuded in the nvestment value, The Group manegement did not identfy imparteant indicators Conear-ing
ire Depaca SRE investment. Af the dete of taking eantrol cver Depace SRL, foliawirg tne velsaton of e
initial 50% mvestmant, no logsas ar gaing ywarg recorted, the fair value of the inwveatment in Depaco ea of
21 december 2017 baing equal io the ook valua.

Staning danwzne 2312, Depann SR |5 gonsdidaten ac a sulsidiary through the global methng.
The summary findocial information of the jointly contrelbed entity, Depace SRL, as of

31 December 2117, based on the IFRS finengia) staterments and tha rocongiliation with the balance
of the investments according to the consolidated financlal statememts are detaiiad below:

Balanco Shast
31 Decembor
RO
Mon-curreni gsoets 28,318,827
Currant assets, including cash and ahot-bemmn fdapoeilz £4,237 8219
Cumert liakilltes 40558 G664
Lang-tarm Fabilfeasz Ta72 412
Total egulty 41,651,261
CArav s interast in jointly-controled entify 0%,
Grug share i the ret assets of the iint venture 20815631
Erkyilal b aslaficn js %1 infarmathn, purpases anly. Raranian sarguane et is the mclal Tl o S —r—— Toenn -\.w“;'\qrﬁl_q
et !
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TERAPLAST 54

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Tor the financial yaar ended 31 Decembar 218

{54 AMuunty are puprasann 0 Roimartide Can (RONY, aless s nwise srated;

18, JOIMTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY and ASSOCIATED ENTERPRISE oot rwed}

Profit and tosa gecount

Havene

Coust of gaoes 5okl and of services rendered
Eeneral adminisfration expanses

Financial lags

Profit ! {foga) hefore tax

[game tay expenss
Frofit I {less} for the yoar

LS interagn in joinih-controlad endity

Grauve's 3han of ihe Jalnt ventyre's profit

Groun's shete of the joinl warture's comprehensive income
Effect on tha Investrment value

17, INVENTORIES

Firiehad goods

[aw rnatarials
Commodiks
Calssumnahles

[nvartary iterng
Femi-finlshed goods
Fesidual produets

Gonds b be purchasad
Hackaging

lnvantorieg = oross vilue

Valea zdjusimens kar faw matariais and consumables
Value adjustmetits for fieishag products

VRiWe Adjustrmants for marchancize

Total value adjustmeants

Tatal inventories — nat value

Dapago Polituk
t iy — 1 fanuary -
1 December 30 Septarmber
2017 27
ROMN FON
13,204, 408 22,120 858
100,325, 1683 (21,373, 36E)
(9,278 852% {2.460,161)
. (345087} (Fd 8710
. 708513 T {RTI2333)
aed A4 -
. 2 B60 527 (1,712,353]
Gl E%
1,403 510 ERDE, 165)
L tas0.313 {856,144
I Recember 31 Dacember
208 2017
ROMN RON
40,505,323 20 576 825
85,408 494 32,203 7l
70T 070 S, 861,149
2.B4E 108 2,341 858
234 337 203,591
116815 8Z 4EE
283,13 146,218
1,212 5587 1.055 852
188,069 142 25
. ina ar4, a7 71,340,464
3 Dacember 3 December
218 v
RO RON
(2,168, 186) 42,794, 31E)
47308501 (2. 718,770
1850 Bd 5y [(BET.FAS)
¥, 7a8,648) 16,290,534
100464, 680 | 670658 427

The vaiie &dustrents sre made for all categaries of fnventory (zaa abave), using both genaedal methods
sl spacits methcds acsording to their age end znalyses on the ok ances i use them in the faure. The
calegores of nventiries with the aga of one year or above which did aat have By mMaverents in tha psst

vaar sre 1M1% adlusied.

Fhe: Sracp's invertorice are pledgad Ik favar of firanaclag banks,
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TERAFLAST 3A
NOTES 70 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 Docember 2018
(Al amounty ang oxpeRded @7 Ramanian Lal ROM,, wikse officioge sa

12. TRADE AND QTHER RECEIVABLES

3 Docember 3 December

Short-tarm recelrables 2R 2017

RON ROM
Trade eopivabias 133,856,397 101,485,325
Acvanees pad o sepoliers of assets 6,404 825 2,233,906
Arnvances patd to supalisrs of inventaries and sesvlcas 1,528d758 1,463,081
Crher receivsblas 10,766,619 S8t T20
Afjustments far rade paeevahies smozicmant 9 052 330 {21.839,058)
Fotal 127 460,704 85,765,581

Dfhe ecemadles include the amoun of ROMN 3,240,821 {2017, BON 4.520 04} reprasanting WAT
racavarable [Faraglass Bistita SEL, Terasteel Doo Serbia, Teraplast Logigtic SRL, Depage SEL.

The -::hariges in adjustmeant far Impalrmant on doubtful recelvabies

MM December 3 Decemlzer

2018 i i

ROM RON
Balance a2t the beginning of the yedr : {21 T 3, 066) I:‘!E 205 ABT)
Racalvableg transfermed 1o expenses during the yan.r . A40, a0,553 1,109,503
Impairment adjustmant charged te piofit anc Iu:ass far Fede raceivables (1.020,4E1; {188.E52)
Furchaza of shareholder contrat : @ Iny 4455807
Ealance at the and of year : T {25,086,230)  121,939,065)

vWhen determining ine recoverabilty of 4 receivable. the Group takes into consileralion any chkrenga I the
crediting guality of the concerned receivable staring with t1e credit granting data untll the reponing cata.
The concertratizn of the credi risk = linlked w@king o consderaton that the cliert hase s lzrge, but fhey

ara nat related to aach otner Az 3 rasult, the Growep management is of the vigw that no adjusment for
impedrmeaat far credits 9 reeded in addifion to e adjestmant far dovhtful reosivabs.

The Group's recaivailes ama pledged in full in Eavdr afthe dnangirng BENsS.
The reconciliation betwesn e beence of [the adjestmert for chpalemont repstecsed as of

21 Degember 2017 acaording ta WAS 33 and the balance as of 1 January 28 according ta IFRS &, as well
as tha evoletlon of adjustments for impairment for frade receivables dunng the yeeris as folows:

Trade Dither
recelvables recelvakles
1 January 2018, |n accordance with 143 35 21,691 657 247 459
‘Revenue) ! expanse in profit end loss (177.120] g1t
Hei ravaluation of expacied HEsas from mcal'.rablas S10.000 -
Acqulsitian of Depaco aoniral : 2100451 BABGTE
¥ Docember 21 E : i 24 124,833 #7333

Erkylsh Irgiralpzizn is Barimfamalicn purpases anly Romaniar lnguapg= 1=k A the affigal bd dor s bmssicr,
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TERAPLAST SA
MOTEE TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the financial year ended 31 December 20165

18, AERETS HELD FOR SALE

31 Decernber 31 Decamber

2013 _dw
Opening baiance as of 1 January aBsmE T .
ihpats throdeg t trarsions from angiole non-gurant asses 1,RE3, 554 553,214
Citpits thrawgn sole - A -
Gloging balance as of 31T December _ 1,865,560 . 633215

In 207, ne Gompany reclassified the asests hald @ Galati (land zid swldings) with a ret oook valua of
ROM 853.215 from tengible assets inte assats neld for sale and wers measured at #he rectassdicatan date
At o dowast betwaen the net nook value and itz fair velee minus the cosis geheratad by the sala. These
saeehs warg soid in 2018, generating a proflt of RON 185 895

In 20%8, tha Compeny has reciagaifiad its assets held o Sdopeni Jend anc buildings of Llanqibla asasta ity
gxsets hedd for agie! and thoy wers meagured of rec’asaification date of the lowest value Betwear Lhe At
bk value aad he fair value less the casts yanaratad by the sale,

B, BHARE CAPITAL

3 Decamber 31 Decembier

2018 2017
ROMN RN

Common aheres prid in fult 107,024 527 BEG9n W7

Total 107,024,527 35,661,047

As gt 31 December 2018, the value of the share capital aslleg-up and pad up of the Sempany inciudes
1.0, 245 274 (207 855 010.970) authorzed shares, Issued and paid in full, 8 a veiye RON 0.1 ang
hawvird a fotal nomina) vales of RON 107 024,527 {257 ROK 85851,097). Common shates Dear & yols
each and give she right to davidends.

O 14 Brecemnas: 2018, the Finandcial Supervisony Autholty has isaued the Security Registraton Codikzals
ng. AC-3AR0-7FZ 12 20M8 related btz the shace capitzl increase asproved throegh the decsion of the
Sharehiclders’ Genara! Extraondinary Meating of Terapiast SA ro £ from 27 Al 2018, with the amaart of

ROM 21,333 485, through the :asugnee of 213,334,304 new anares. naving a nominal valus of RGN 0.1 )
share

Jn 3 duly 2017, the Financial Sipare:eary Aushority has issued the Securties Ragisiration Cerificats no.
AC-34Z0-5103.07 2017 relafed 10 fha lncreese of the share capital approved thravgh the Decigion af the
sutracnfinary Shaseholders’ Generzl Meeting of Terapiast 54 no,1 from 27 Aprl Z0E7, with the amaunt af
AUk 29 047 82, thraugh the istae a’ 250 478,310 few shares, hawing a norinal walue of G 0.7 2hana

Erglizh tarsation i6 for 1Rl aurpases oty Rorenisn l21z Jege Lk jx b affgle: te far BUETTEslor. P
55 '
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TERAPLAST SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for tho financlal year ended 31 December 2018

fal amcuints ane extiesead i oo Lef (RO onless offervies stafed)

20. EHARE CAPITAL [continuad)

Sharchobding skructure

__3%t Gecember 21K 31 December 2017
Numiwer of - M ureber of %
shares ownarship shares gwnership
Goia Darel 801,187,958 J8.33 400 RS G544 £5 TG
Wiciu Emanoi 35 447 THZ 480 SR 00% 202 £.44
&farley Maoyarorzzag
(Gamencplast Szekszanz) B4, 258 T30 7.2 B7,535.0% 7oo
KK BALKAN HCLDING Sark 307, 530858 1005 - .
Fuk Fund I Sican-SHFE - - BE,Udd S5 10,0
FOMDAIL 2 E PEMSIT ADMIMISTRAT PRIVAT
AN WM PEMSI 3 AFPAP SA V1 305,417 B8 &7.044 00d 6.65
iC% IMOEILIAR 54 A5£14.285 301 ET.EIZ O 318
ther individuats and izoal entities _ X7 ZEE.B43 2134 97.771.427 20.08
Total 1,070,245,274 00 BEES10.8TG 100
Fraasdry sharas
thouzands ROM

Az of 31 Decamber 2047 1,863  EB3,398
Repurchase of own shares, net of exercising ine aptions 3. BUE BL9.2R
As of 37 Degember 2018 3571 1472525

The shara gations axercfsad aach year have Eeen seflad esing ihe Company's treasury shares, Tas
rezuction of tha equily compencnt represantad by resgsny BhEles is equai io e gost coverad o purchase
th= shares. .

27. LEGAL RESERVES

31 Decambar 34 Becember

ag 2HT

RON HON
Opanng baanca 13,928,022 12,407 038
Incremsss £ (dacrases] in the penad 1,577,742 1,531 98k
Total 15518 164 13,635,022

Tne l2cel resenve i3 used for transferdng tha profts to retained =arnings Accemding to the Romanian
lsgislation, & transfes from the ket profit of the {Sroup 12 naeded. Tha mansfer mey account wp o 54 of e
profit befam2 o untd e reserve becomes 20% of ike share capital.

The resarve cannat be disfribuied to the sharcholdars, but it may be used it oToer to alweork apeiating

lceses, ard, : this &asa, it becomes texable starting the daw when It was 28t The maragemeant does ncl
intznd [0 use ke =gal resene inasder ba cover accounting lg9ses camied fongard.

Engliah transigan e ior Infet1atiat p:ur-u-n:.mz: orsy. Romanian larguage Ll 'a:fr.é.a'l-’r."dal bt Tor sahToRsior S .;.._,.,5..”',"'.,.,._. P——
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TERAFLAST 54

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

for the fibanclal year ended 51 Dacember 2614

(i ENTAUNGR @15 guitds in Romanias Ley [RONT, tirlass ofleiaEe Shisd)

22, NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31 Bacermber 3 Decamber

2018 HET

ROK RoH
Balarco at the beglonity of the year agn 4En 334608
Sesult for the year TGO EE F32, 5049
Tlends (1,101 33E) (3197, i
Lrquivemont of Apn-cortreding o soses 1,615,549 .
O¢har itams L. E2Mpns 0 daEn
Balanee atthe end of year 1885408 450 230

Az of 31 Dacamber 207 ¥, nen-cenirallng Interests consist of 2 06% haldings in Terastael 5S4 and, 28 of 31
Decembar 2018, non-contredlng ltecests conslat of 2 Q5% kaklings | Terastest SA, 1% in Depace SEL
and 49% in Garhng WTB SHL.

22 LOANE
Shartderm o _.Lonpg-termt _
2 Becamber 31 Docember 31 Ooccomber A7 Decembar

—_®Ma AT a0 My
Pocsth: Rank - 41,358 - 7.792
T-ansivaka Bank 71,361,805 E3,945 B4Y¥ 7, TAT 841 Td, 265 A0
Reiffeiean s 22,608 025 740,900 - .
LI-redd Benk 12 867 746 - ®TI302E
Ciii Bank 5724129 -
|55 Bank 343 456 - - -
LB — ov4@®  14s23s 1938350 GOE2SS
Totel 123,487 BAL BB, 778,393 _  T1.63gAh23 74,868,047
The ciagadicatan af laans accorelndg Lo e curenmes i a3 follows:
CUTENSY .. =018 2Mr
CL:R T4 086, 1332 -
Rk 130003211 130TaG,447
Tolaf 195 (15 513 133, 7db, 449
The distribution of Eank Ipans per companies is as folows:

— . .  _Bhorderm Lang-tarm ..
3 Dacamber 3t Becamber 39 December 34 Oecamhber
M8 2013 2019 a0y

Tee*aplasl 54 SA g0 RO AL ATR 72T o7 214,253 T3084 285
Terzabrel A, 27537 apg 14,353,778 - SHEIT
Turagiass Brhilla SRL Z,07E 588 A3, 667 1= gt 1 E50,781
Depacn SRL 24171 7o 2,504 AR -
Trrastasd DoD Serhiz C A6e, 153 - .
worting WTE SARL ac 313 ) — _leb.36d )
Tot| Lo Tea T GrYEREET Tikdg) 664 T4 260 602

Eaish Iranelabar & i ifmmstion durtoess ory Bemanisn Snduace (e 18 B1e ol fer o snbm o,

a7
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TERAPLART 54

NOTES T0O THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCHAL STATEMENTS
fortha financial yezr endod 34 December 2118

(il TN are EpNESIEIT i Romanlan Lei CROMN), thiless offimnndzs slatad

2. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES AND PROVISHONSG

Thz Gioup hag eatablished & benaf) Plan accarding ta which the Employ2es 2re antliied b racany
sdtirarcat benstls accanting te ¢e SENEArity wlthin B Group whan Ikky Lirn dRe rafirement age of 85 far
mer: ard of 81 for women. These are na athar post-ratiremant amplovae bepetls,

Fhe praviior reprosants PrEsen. velua of the atiremeant banadgt ao celculated or an acttarial basis,
The diseourt rase s tha gurve of ike RON inteseats with rao attiusfmans pravided By EHZPA until December
2918, The artura salary INcresses ara estinated an the: lang-termr ad 0,5% and, in the firse 3 vears, gt 1%,

Short-term —ee. . Long-beem .
3t Decanibrer I1 Decembor H Deeember 31 December
L | N 1 b 2018 20fr
R [Zim]); RON RN
Finpiyer bangfits - u 72d Bas 120, 85=
Frovisions far #1s%z and expeftses _ TEO.Z13 BT ads - -
Total e JEQE1E  BTG44B | T 774Bam . 320,83

tha atest actuarizl vaiuationg ware perfarmed on 34 December 2014 By Mr. Silviu Matel, 8 mamber of iha
Mornanian Actuarial lrstilute. The pres=al vlue of the dofined banafit obligadions and the surrent ang Fast
cozte of ralated sarvices have Dean megsired using the projeciad urii oredlt methed,

Duslng the finsncim: vear 291a, Tesaglast S5 sel orovisions smocnting o RON 404 013 a0
AN 3,100 related 1o tha rahts for emprowves GoMpengation, haset on the actugrisl cormputation for the
Amauns granted to tha employees for retirameant, amounts provided to be grantec 2coonding to the
collective fabar contragt,

¥t December 31 Becember

Employes benwhits _ =201 207

RON RON
Dpening halanse 320,536 AE1.936
Mowaniznig . LA (51.008)
Ciosing balante . 724,849 _  330E3F
31 Decentber heat 1 Decambur

Current provisians 2048 NOvermenis £007

RON ROM RO
Poovisions fer lidgation - 10,000 G000
e provisicng FRC2i3 1857322 271 845
Clozing balance TEOZYE 195233 975,448

Tetapiast SA has set provizgions far BUNdry expenses *=lated o anvircameatal protacian shd (ax [Ebibltiss,
bl probable that cedain obligations generfatad by pres events of the 2nlily woukd determitg an oulfow
af mssarces,

The raversed provision far fitigations reladed b g posa bR litigaton ralated to a tuenular necropolis in Galatl,
In 20°8, this provelen was raverserd as the EpEcas held in Salat wara scly.

el T

E;I'Ig'l' *:ram:aﬂ-m I's !ﬁ'lnf:rma;l;m PUTPOBES 2aly. %miﬂiﬂn hr-gu:;l-h; 2a: i Aka affsial kel e 2yl rv=sizn,
51
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TERAFPLAST EA
MOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
for the fimancial vear endad 31 Decembser 2018

ral iy e expressed in Romesan Ler MRONT unisas afenvke sialed)

23, TRADE ANO OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payaoles

Tracgs notes pavabla

Lighiltizs fram tha purchese of non-cument assets
Cher cumant payatbies {MNate SE)

Apvence payraents from slients

Todai

28, OTHER CLRRENT LIABILITIES

Salary-related payables o amplevess and social securty payables
VAT payainla

Linclaimed employas rights

Btndry creditors

Lefarssd ircome

Carmmarcial guarantzes racalvad

her taxes payabla

Chvidends payable

Total

27, FINANCIAL LEASE DBLIGATIONS

Leass cotbants

21 Decemtbar 34 Pecember
2018 2017,
RON RON

126,833, 102 66,364, a2
8128 E25 1,172 128
52T0ETd 2495050
GU7E T34 8,250 800
;2B BET 402 Z53
142,262,622 BE, 184 973
=1 Dacembet 31 Decamber
201% ZMT
ROMN ROM
B.BTFTTS 0,340 242
1,210,665 1,60E 578
g:,53 8%, 535
12,653 AL TIE
EaEE 154,145
124, B55 122,130
£2d,373 G03, 1948
233,147 185, ZEB5
5075734 B 750,755

Finance leazea relate to motor veklelas and aguipment on ease pericds of 5 - & vears. The Group has the
aption of purshaging equipment for a nominal smagnt 28 e end of the contractua? perlods. The Grawp's
abl'gativns reiEted to financizl lease are quarantesad wiih the legsee’'s property right over the aszeks.

Finanece leasa Habilifes

The tair value of dnonce lease ligbitles i approximataly agual 1o their carmying &rmaeint.

Discornted value of the
Mimimum leeaa peyments minlntuem ease payments
M Docember 31 Decentber 31 Decetnber 31 Decomber
201E 2017 048 . 2017
RON RON ROH ROM
Present velua of minimum ksse payments
Amounts pEyable & one year T41.4731 %086 304 BT4 810 7,040,205
RBiare H2an ong year but ees thao fae vears 1,403,744 145,444 g R A5E, 35
ARone & years - - - -
Total leaze labllBan 2145174 §,831,738 157208 {T4TEEY
inus juture finandel expansee (183 37 g4, 157] -
The carrent value o financlal [2ege nakliitles 1,978,248 1,767,861 .

ErgllEh Irenalation |2 far infanmatkan parpodes only, Redarsan mrglage few: i the ofical i far subrissan

E2

[T
T AN T ks S

[ ik OPR 101 |

LH T



TERAPLAST 84

NOTES TOQ THE &ONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the finaneial year ended 31 December 2044

(9T ARAs Ao axpressed i Rowmsmsian Ll SR uniess afenwinge sieted;

28, FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The dsk management sctivity with'n sha Group |e Perfertted in relation o financlal riske foratlt risk, marat
ek, gesgraplic dsk, foreign SITENCY figk, infareat rate rigk and liquldity rish}, aperating rske and legal
g%z, The main obigctives of tha Snancial risk Inaaagernent aclivity are to deternine the risk miles gng th 0
to ersure that the expeeuce to raks s enzintainac babwaen thesa imits. Tha Managemant of opersting a:n
legal rigka s gmed at quaranteing the goad functioning of the internz| poficies anet procedures far
minavilzeng cperating ang legal rlags.

{ak Capital rigks management

Tre Gravp manages its vapital 12 ensura that the ensitas within the tSecup will be abls 4 contihue Hair
activity and, al she sama time, maxinize revanles for the sharshodars, by aptimizing ihe balence af
Hahifities and gy

The sbracture of the Eroup capital congists In debis. whish ihelude e joans datgiled i Moie 23, the sash
aa cazh egulvelents and the acudy attribwtaika o ety Fokdars of the Fasent Graup, Bauity includes the
share sapital, ressaves ard retainod SEMirgs,

Maraging tha Group's fsks also hoydes 3 TegU'ar analysis of e caplial strafuse, Ag part af the same
3nglysis, managarsent consxlers the cost of capitat and the rigke ssaotiated o s3cn clases of caplial. Basad
ar e Managemant recommendatlons. tha Group may balanea s cataral capitel structune thragh the
Rayrent of divigends, by =BLIng new sharss and repurchasing shams, ss wel as by cantraciing naw
liabil:tes and setding the exising ares,

Justas eiher Indwstry rapresentatives, the Group manitars e capital brzed on the gaaring ke, This ratla
iz #a'culated 83 nat dent dloded by taiz] capltal. Tha nat deit it re precanted by the toial loans (encruding
lang-barm and shorktarm [ons as detajla an the bajanee sheet) lets the cask and rash Bqlivalants. Tota)
SRl rapresents “equiy”, a9 detailas or the sonsolidsted balanme shesi pluz tha net debt,

Fha gearing raio 22 at 31 Decatrber 2243 and 20717 was as followes:

2m8 2017

RON RON
Tais jans (Noty 23} 135,085 913 153,746,440
lezs cask and cazh eguivalents (22017679 (120880250
Mat degit 172288340 131730688
Total equity . BEATEFGE T TTATan a7
Total equity and net dabt T 34,205 346,474,375
Geatfng ratic . A% 39

{b] Summary of zlgnificant aceoy ntlny poligies

The detaits o tha main accounting oolicies and methodz adopted. nelyging tha fezognition I:J"ifEr!H.
MEAGUrEMEL hasis and revanue ang expenses mcagnition basle, CONCETIing each clxe= af firarzial
agsats, financiai fabiities and caplial Instuments e Freeamed in Mata 2 o the finengial statetnents

_F_m:lm‘ﬂ Laastzzion k hor ivfommation purpoges whly. AgmBnlan AangJage bece! i4 tha ikl bt Tor salbemissicer,
E3
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TERAFLAST SA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financlal year ended 31 December 2018

fail atmouis are sxpmesac h Rerhasaian Lei ROMY, wiless athanaiss st

23 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENMTS (continued)
(e} Objectives of the financial risk managemeant

The cash funchion of $1e Group prevides sepvices naagsd for the acivity, coordlhaios the acoess @ the
naticnzl firancia: marker, monitors and manages ihe finarcizl rizks relatad ta the GEup operations by way
af r2poets en e internal risks, whizh analyze the sxposure 3 and extent of the cleis, Thaze risks irsleds
the markat sk {including the forelar cuzrensy risk, fair value interest rate fisk arsd the prita riok), credlt risk,
l-quidity sk snd cash fiaw interest raze ek,

{cyMarket rigk

“he Group actvities expose : flrst i the finaralal fsks related 1o the Buctuation of tha axchenga rates (cee
{4} below) and of tha interest rate (see (9] balow.

The Graup mesnagement centinuously manifors its BxposLne ta risks. Howewver, the us2 of this svproask
aes not protect e Group from the acourmence of potendal Josses bavand the foresscabie imis in cacs
of gignificart fluctuations en the market. Thare was no changa fram the prior vear in relation to e Group
FPGIUNE 10 the Market rigks or ko how the Grouos maneges and measores i risks,

{2} Forelgn currency rigk management

T Group pefome ransadions expressed i diferent curransizs, Hence. thare is the rigk of flusteations
i il éxchange ratz. The exprsunss ta the exchange rate ere managed accarding 1o e approvad palicies,

The Groug is mainly exposed to the EUR-RON sxchang2 rate, The table balow datails tha Grawrp eensitivity
to a i0% increaa and decrease of ELIR againgt RON. 10% is the sersltivity rate used when the internal
*Eponting on the foraign cumensy rigk 10 the Grawp is done and it rapresents he managemant sstimats on
:= resaonakly possibie changas in exchanoe ratés. The sensitivity analysis orly includes tha remsining
oreign crrancy expressed in monetary teme and adiuss the sonversian a1 the eng of e pearind Fera 10%,
chengs in avengnge rates. |n the takle below, 3 negative vaiue indicaies 3 decraasa in profit whar e BOk
depreciates oy 10% against the EUR. A 10% strengthening of the RN against tha EUR will have 3n erual
copesite inpact on profit and other egulty, and the balances baloer will be pozitive. Tha changes will be
atiributzb.2 Lo the axaosure relsted to the lcans. trade receivables ana payables with foregn partnarg, pnd
darcmiretad ic EUR at tha end of ike year.

___ 1 December 2018 41 Decembar 2017
RON ROM RN ROM
Frafi; o1 ([ogs) 47E 1T 129753817 1 48E0%4 {1 486 014)

*he Group obtans revanues in ELR besed on the confracts signed with foreign clenis (as d=:ziled in Mote
41

tf) Interreést rate rigk managemant

The interezl-bearing assats of Ihe Group, ite raveruas, and ine cash fiows from operating acfivities are
expnsed to e fluciiations of merkat interest rates, The Graup's interest rete risk relates fo Its bark lozna.
Tha Isans with variabie intercst rate expose ihe Group o the cash flow inkeres: rate nsk. The Group
perfoimad na kedging aEErEon with @ veew 1 reduging i expraurs to the Intarest rmte risk.

Ersilish ranalaLkn Iz far infvsstiar, PUrCOsEs nny. A arEn Bnguane e it ke oficial e for sgbrosson, r"’“" i
BE
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AOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

far the financial yoar enoded 39 Bocamibar 2018

[BN SMSs 05 Axoveezes i Rosmaliun Lel RONY, LRSS Ctlieaslze sistec)

28, FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group corticucuzly monitaes its axposara ia tha Irtereet rate rick, Thets inclugs gimlaline vErious
SI0NEM0S . inciuding the fefinarcing, disccunting cumen: Fositions, Anarcing altematves. Bagerl o finsza
anacios, the Gralp sgbmales the ratomtial impact of vetermened flutieationg in #e Irterast rate 0 tha
arolit end loss acoouni Far esch Slemuilatan, the sarme intarest mte Buctiadior f used i il monsls, These
ACENErGE are only prapened for tha debts represanting the main Interazt-hearing pesltions,

*he Grenn s axposed to the nterest rase risk taking: info aceount that tha Graup antities Borraw fonds et
atfixed ghd at fiaating interss! ratas. Tha risk |s mESEd by the Growg |y mintaning a favoraive baarce
Latwe=n fxed rate and fleating rata interest lnans.

“he: Groups wxposares to the interast rmmes on the fintanels| assets ara detailed in ths semting on Inguidity
FEk management of Fls Nogs.

A3 ai 3 Decemper 2018 ang, respeclvely 31 December Z0M7, in the oace of o Ll 14eh inerease ¢
SRC'EARS Of the iIttarest rate on [oans., Witk alf the other variables heid carstant the ner argfif for fhe parog

wiollid Fuctuabe 33 fallowes, Mainly 83 a resrl of the highe awer intasest wpEnses on foating intarest ans

.. 31 December 2018 3t Docembar 2047
RO RON ROMN RON
Frofit ar [loss: 1,950,858 {1,950 650 1338018 (1338078

fg) ther price rizks

Tre Group is nos Begosed B the squity price rigke ariging Fam eguity investmearts. The fvancial
IMvaLimenis are held for Srategic pusposes rather thar cormargial onss ard &g Not Significant. The GSraup
does not actlvaly srace these Irvestmants

{h)Credit rlsk manapemeant

The crodit ek raa'es to the s« fat a cavnterparty will an: maet jte abligauors causing finanaia! ipsens 50
e Group. The Groug has sdoptes 3 no'isy of performing transactionz only with tuslvochy parkes ard o
cizining suicwent guzraniees, if applicable, as a means o decraasieg the financial lrezas cauaad by
breaches of confracts. The Guoup Expsune and the credit ralings of third pastios 10 eamiracts 4w mewidired
by the Imanagerrant

Trle racaneablas cossici in o Mg Tilin e of ulignig fror giterant industrias and geaqranalcal aregs, The
permanegrt credit sasessment is performed in relstion ta fe clients' financial condtion and, wmen
ASpOFi2tE. 3 credd insurencs is concluded:

“he ¢ash is held in finatsial instlbdonrs which, at the gata whan it is desosited, are considersd to fave the
iwWest raimilzsement rlsk, The Grogp has poElcles Emiting the valua of the exposuse For any financal
IF stitutior:.

The cemying amaudrt of recelvabies, net of ihe pravision Sor raceivables, plis tha cash and essh aquivalents,
are tha meximom =riout EXpLEan b the eredit sk, Adhough the recalvasle Gollechion could be infleaaued
by econamin factors, the management consdars there |s ng slonificant loss risk for tha Grovp, beyond tha
provigsans alresdy mennded,

The Group corsicders the expoaurd 4o the cradit risk in refation fo & counterparty oe & greas of senllar
courtsrpanies by analyzing the recevagles IeAividually ang maling impitnent Adiusimanta togather v
the: ctien? cradic maragarent deparimart

e, s . . . s ]
E a6l Ire asladkon: i far nfonviadion Prirpses 2nly. Remanien langazgn g 15 Bic ofiols, e 721 aubrniss;ar. T Lol bzt |
GE |
| el
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WOTES TG THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 Dacainbar 2018

Tall amountz are sxpressed b Ransenisr Lai "ROMY valess clhanddee sisted)

28. FINARCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
([} Liguldity risk management

Tha uimate responsitellty for liguidiar Fisk managament f2s with the Soard of Drrectors, whick have
dsvataped ar aporopraie llguidity risk mranagarneni ramewssh in terms of enguning furding for the Grcup
&h the stor, medium end lehg-term end managing :douidities. The GraLp maneges tha kquidity rsks by
ma:ntzining approprisie ressrves, bank faciliizes and reserve loen facilfties, by cordinuowsly maorlkesing
achuzl cash fows and by gomelating the maturity profiles of finanalal assets and Eoiities. Note 23 includas
a hist of adgitional facilities not drawn oy the Company, whish the Group has in order W fusthar reduce the
Siquidity risk.

gy Fair vafue of Mnanciz! instrumants

The financial instrumentz disclosad on the statamant of FReaca! position include trade and other
reneivablas, cath and cash equivalerts, short epd fong fent ans end other dekts. The SRMYNG amounis
tepressnt the maximum: exposune of (ha Sroup to the tredit risk relatad io the EXistng Iecsivabing,

Fhe nalysis of ihe frade receivables and of trade notes & as fallows:

H Daceamber M Decamber

2014 .. a01F

ROM RON
Mot ovardue 29.965.714 TG,T44, 378
Owardug, haf not impared EF 45185 8 964,700
Irpaired ard Araveionad in ful 25 QEE. 230 31.822 A5
Total 152,666,834 110,543 864

i"1 The adiuataents are made faliawing an ‘ndfvifual analysls on the recoverslity of o bzda receiveble
talancas.

Overdue, but not impalrad:
31 ecember 3 Decernler

2018 F1y ke

RO RON
Balowy 3 monehs 20241 44T B4OF7 115
4 [ d menihs 5 2BA 934 578,558
£ o 3 mbnkhs 111,108 hiT. BE8
Antwe 9 months R 1,720,458 1,781,103
Totw| _ 27 491,950 BG4 TOT

Recelvabias thst ara overdue, but rot impaired, for more than 9 manth are =agureg,

——— . ———— R = -
Euglisk Irarislatiah is Er infymakicn purpases gnly Remanian @Anguage ead lo ths afisal st for sabmizaion. |:-¢ " tatimen
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLINATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
far the Ananciat year enged 31 Decemoar 2018

Sl atwunis are axpicssed in Rom

Artian Lel RO, s atheauige Rfafed;

28, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS feantiped)

Inpzaneed ang provisionad in fui

Relow @ romnshs
G 12 12 months
Abinge 12 monthg
Tolal

31 December
2013

31 Dacember
T

RON

1,787 136
383,578
_ 22425566

ROM

Tog 3
1,484 797

854,757

.. 2608523 " 21832895

Eriials Irars)gtfou is T mifeempton EITEL

£8E Bndy He fanfan lH'r'lS.!ui.!gﬂ taxt 1s Bre etfiglzl e For gubminsion.
By

- = e s
Sl ey Moamatemaits
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FTERAPLAST 54

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FEINANCIAL STATEMENTS
far the Enancfal year ended 31 Decamber 2018

St amaenis s axprossed In Fomantss Lei FRONTY riloss clitrnise stzm)

29, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Tne refated e afiiliater eatiiss of the Sampany are as follows:

1 Netambgr

Sibsidlaries and [eludy canteoifed antitics
Teraiglase Blatrity G4

Terattes| 54

Prodibul: 54

Trinplaat Logistie SRI.

Teapias! Hur gasia

Depac: SAE

Terastesl (¥20 Seiplg

Related ontitles {shrareholding / jolnt degision-mikar}
ACICI 5A Borrari

Fanna Poinicola tiagu §8: Romanis

La Case Blstoranta Pizresig Pane Dodoe B4 Romania
CEnicorinee 84 Romenls

hdagis Investred S

lachiz Inyess St

‘mchia Aciivholding SRL

Isir) 2ot SRE

Agalegumicein Besau S8L

Mew Croco Pizeaia 304

Parncary SRL

Cilant £ Jmpes SRL, Bomanls

REL Captal Adviagrs SR

B har X118
wsubsitlafes
Teraitlsss Biskits SRL
Terastoal 30,

Pahi:bh S4

Teaplast Logats GRL
Tarapast Hungans Ki
Depscn SRL
Tersztael Doa Serbig
ntting WTHE SRL

Redated entltias iahareholaing § jodnt dec|gton-rnaker)
AL T 54 Romsanlsy

ASHTLEGLRECOLA DRALGL SR Ram.ania

welld Capital BRE Romaniz

iavis impex SHL Ramanig

Euoraboid AD Buparis

FERMe, POMICOLA GCRAGL SRE Fermania

Hesines 54 Bomaniz

iNFO ZPORT SRL

[SCTHIA ACTIVHOLDING SR

IRCHIS INVES F SR,

LA CASA RISTORANTE PIZFEMRA FANE DOLCE SRL
Magis [nvestment SRL

Mundus Servicas AD Elilgatla

MEW CROCO PIZZERIE SRL

Bl

FARCAERY SR

R4l Capital Agvizprs SR1

Skheva Francnise Group S

o, e AR

.E"lg.-‘:.':h ra.16l3bion & .1-'1'..-:'.51:'lﬁ.'lrn1|.=:1|il1 PuaREEee 2nly, Rosranian l6rguaga rax |3 the off'cul bextire £ b vEsion, i
Lk '

[k LA

= i RE
|. Seni A pan i pe T




TERAPLAET 54

MOTES TO THE COMNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3TATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2018

J‘gﬂa:l.'r.umr&ars Exnragied it mamanan Lo CRONY inivss p.‘:ﬁlarurh:e .gfa!qd}

249. RELATED PARTY TRANSAGTIONS {continued}

Trangaclicns setwean the parent Carmpany and |ts subsidiares: e GroLp affiliates ware eliminatad fram
tne congolidation and they are not dizslesed in this Maois,

. &1 December 31 Dacember
Transactions and bafances with other ralated partias 2018 2017

RON ~ RON
2Biss Or a0 end serages 187,485 2,512,299
Fuschazes of gonods ane senices 154,477 1847027
DebH Jalancas or.2re B3.451
Cragit balances 15,455 4,774

0. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Fercash flow statement pumposes, the cask and cash adjuivalents Include cesh on hano and bank sgcornts.
Cash and cazh aquivalents al frencizl yozr epd, 83 diseloeed o tha cash fiow statement, may be
recandirec with tha ters related ts the accounting balznes shest 5 foflows:

M Decsmnber 3 December

2018 2047

ROoM RN
Cash itz bark 22 254,803 11,54 GBg
Billz recemebie 235 mEd T g4
Cash on hand 182,728 132,619
{Cesh equivalents 104,372 31,004
Total 22817571 12.0415,802

The Group's svaiiabfe cash is pledged in fulf in favar of finansing banks.

1. COMMITMENTS AND COMTINGENT LIABILITIES
Terapiast 5A .

Tha Compary has a bamk letter of guaractes ceiling of ROM 1,750,000, Within the cedling, as of
31 Cacamber 2015, tha bank letier of guarantes j=sued in favar of ROMPETROL DONMSTRERNM,
smoLintng ta ROMN 400,000, valid between 30 Jure 2017 and 28 June 203E, i it effect

£6 o 31 Deceber 2018, de Campany also haz o balence & bank letter of guaran:e amounting o EUR
< OCHOCD l2xued gy RAIFFAISEN BANK and guarantesd with a roilsteral depasit of ELIR E30.004. The
bank letter of guarantee wag izsued It faver of RAIFFAISEN BAMNK SERELA ta graran®=e the [etars of
credit line amainting o EUR 2,000,000 accessed by TERASTEEL DO frem RAIFFAISEN SANK SERBIA.
Irs validity is bebwisen 30 fune 2018 and 20 Jyne 20149,

ik WPR TOM

i - ol
nE"E#-E-:ﬂH-“'ﬁlﬁ'\:!-\.

Enc.izh ranslaliod is fo- farration pumaeee anty. Ramanian lRnguags tasl is the: ofizia Saax far aubmlaesan " for s A Bt T
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NUTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED £ INANCIAL 3TATEMENTS

for the financlal year anded 31 Becember 2018

[ Bemcats S sapresed i Romaan LEf CHON), unigss aimene skakue)

3. COMMITMENTS AN CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

As of 31 Dagember #HE, tangible asssts mnd irvestmant propery hawing 5 ret Dook wame of
ROM 98,963,115 2re cuaraatees ior izang and sred fings. Tha Combary has guaraaesd for Bank nans
Wi all eurent and fuyre sesh Zvatlable, wih anr qurant ang fiytore Ivataorles of marchandlse g
Aratlcts 2nd it has asslgnad e slrrenlandg fubvre rghts of recans bla, a3 wolf =5 sheir AC5RSR0rEE, aining
TN gumant and futura coptragts wiih its clients, hovikg tha capadisy of assaned debtors. In adgifion, she
Lompany has agsigned the rights resuling fenm the insurapes polcies lssued having as akject the

TEe Company hes firanoe MemsE rontracts in Prograes. for which tha caRitar rate is incrudad in ghor- or
fang-tasm fabilities, ag applicabie.

ls1 2097 the Campany has grantad to Banca Traneivenia a guaranies to he liabls FEAiy With Terastes! 8,
0 the ralmbursamen: of iha keans having o beisnce of RON 47348, 249 which Terastael has contraciac
Froin Eiznea Trassivanla,

As of 31 Dacembar 2018, the Company has unLsed loan facditios arourting by RON 73 794 883 And

Unbsed Investnant laans Bmounticg to RO § fas of 31 Decamber 2017 ROM 30,485 25s and unuee]
nvaatnent loans Fncuniing to ROMN 15,493,535 J

Ihe Company signad in Nawembar 2ME a finencing 2y eement for 2N invastrment prodect of RO 28 gE7
hauzand, within the Stame g scaeme for gtrulating Investmeants hawing = malor impagt on te |earky,
¥% af the projac: value js funded hrougn slate zic. Tae n eraplast 34 projest zims af cffarng & naw
nradust in the grasules field god 2areng & line whilr will allow FXMEring *he producticn capacity of the
PodyRrepyle e syEtamg,

17 M 2013 the fiompany signed the hank loan gantract 1o fund its awn contribition to thls Rrojget sl
‘e data of these Aranon; statamen:s, the Cotrpany wic nac esbynit an ¥ reimbursemont regLeet

During 208, Teraplast S and EON Ernergie Romanta have signad ar agrezment of EUR 1 5 miltap, Gn
B Lasis of this partnershig, E.ON Wikl Inatall eglar POWET Syaterne on the rools of 1% praduction halls mned
Duilcings of TeraFlast, whish will alloyw the compeny 10 genarste it awn electricity from renewabls source,
The agresment provides tha Pass-hility o axdend the praject, Nk yasr, up to the amound of ELIR 4 milliar.

Tersatoel £

A3 afF 31 Decerbay 2018, tha Lompany has unuzed loan faciizs amounting o BON 0,487 027
va7 Dezember 2017, ROM 4,262 30d)

Tha Group's Kng-term borrgwings vl short-tarm toarne =re puarantaed with avairabla gash, both -:ur'rE!r!t
anel futvre, i the current ascounis 2pened with the barks where the ltans are contracted fram, it
sxEignmenis of inventaries and cuImmarcial eontracis snd real egiate Morgages.

As of 31 Decerbar 2017, e Cotrpany bBaa & lotter of credit eehleg ameunting 1o ELFR 3,000,000, 2xpirlhyg
an 7 Decembar 2018, Within thia oeiiing, as af 31 Cacember 2017, the fellrecing lattars of gusrantaetark
l=t=re of crecit ae issusd-

A5 af 31 Desemasr <078, the Carmpany has a Cailing of bank lstters of credit of RON &, 000,000 sxpin ng
on & ouly 2019, A3 of 37 Decembar 2UT8. within this ceiling, re valid leters of guarantes [ leifers of crmgi
are isgued

P 2017, tha Company granted o Tranglvsnia Bask & quarantaa far belng ioindly Fable with Teraplast 54

Far reimburamng the cang amaunting te ROM 130,783 305 which Teraplas: S& has esntracted fom Barna
Trenailvanig,

Ergliek rarsmion B o isfomaton Mumises only. Ramenisn JAngusge Inst & e sl e Far suaminglos

Al
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TERAPLAST 5A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2048

(=i artounis A srprageed fn Fomaman Le ¢ RONY, uhless offonwise shalet!

3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES feontinued)

A3 0f 31 Decerber 2074, tha Cympzny has a ceiling of kelbars ot guararebsa of RON 1,500,000 which expire
S0 B Jucy 2015, Wil this ceiling, as of 21 December 218, the falewing |ettars of cuararies are issuar:

lzgyilng bank Validity period Amount  Curency Suargnbee pu [pQEA
Banca Transivania  01.02.2018 - 31.47.2018 ROMPETRCOL

100,000 RN COMWMYNETREAM
Banca Tranelvania  05.03.201E8 - 08022015 190,334 AN ARAF

Teraglas= Bistrila SRL
A3 of 11 December 2014, the Company has unusad leen Sseilitise arnounting fo RON 505,415,

The Company bas signad in Novembar 2048 5 financing agreement for an ivesTiem proect of
RO 16,057 ousand within the State zid =cheme For Fimiating e investrients having a majar ircact
2n the economy, B0% of ihe project valye is funded framm atate ald. The project of tha Teraglazs Bistrits
SRE company aims at creating @ new, completaly sukcmated fogw for £ produciion of PV windows and
doors, procast whick w8l cgntibete both e IMgreaging the peodustion capacity snd the [Bhor productivity,
as weli gz ko 2aksfying e demand which is on an upward tremd.

Depaco SRL

As of 31 Cacarabar 2018, the Cempsny has unueed loan faci ties amountieg o RGN 8,107,432 and
EuR a0s, 195,

As gf 3% December 2018, the Coring WTE SRL eompany has Unueed loan fasilifes amaunting ta
RON 1 500.004).

ln Mewvernber 2048, the Company signed a finencing aqresment for an invastment project af AOM 15,265
Fiousane, within the State aid schemse for stimufating invastnenia with & mmalor impact on tha BEDAOMY,
a0% ol he projaet value balag iunded from state sid. Tne project a* Depaen SRL campany Rima at opating
3 nesw production facility in Balool {Prakova) which, at a production capacity of over 72 millon square meters
of files, will ensdra eplimum bagistcs and storing fows.

Fotential tax liapilities

In Ramgnia. there ara saveral agencies autharlzed 1o perfom coatrls reudita}, Thasa contrels sre similar
in nzturz to the fax inspactons perfommed by the tax sutharties in many countries, but dthey may cover not
akly fax maliers, bt alza legat and reguiatory mattess, the concemesd sqancy may be intarasted in, The
Group campenias arte tikely te ba voeasionally subect te such contraks for breacws or allegad brasenas of
T2 rew and existing laws and regulations. Although the Growp may chaliange the aileged Brasches and
ratamd prnaltes when the management considers they are entitled to fake such =gticn, the adaption ar
implementalion of lBwa and reguiatlons in Romanig eould have @ significant isnpact an the Group. The
Rotrantan tax syskem is under continueus development, pelkg Eubject to constan! Interpretatons and
changes, sametimes refraspectively appbad. The statute of limitation for tax perfods is 5 yaa-s.

Tha Greup adminisiraors ara of the view st the tax labllibes of the Group have bast celoylaed and
recostad Becoming o the legai provizlons.

English Sranslatian 1 27 INS1hiakian FIpRsES naly. Rarmanlan |a_n’g|:=':gu veat is the cfficle: tEcd Bor UbEission.  T__ _.__5,__;_,__[5:,_.;..“;-._]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

for the financis] year onded 34 December 2018

Al gy are FerissHd I Rihiamian Lel CRONY, tnlses olyonvise S0Jod

3. CONMMITMENTS AND CONYINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Environtental inatters

Tha mait aetivity o* the group COMpatias kave Inherent sfects an ike shvironrment The anvirermanial
effecis of the sormpanies’ actvties are resnitorad By the local authartize ang By the managemanl. The
Froup comparies paimanenlly =im ot coTplying with e envirommental nbligations. Az a result. Ao
ProvaSions wers set for any kind of potentlal abligations surremtly unguantiable in relation to eavirormental
matbers or actinns for thar remadial

Fransfor pricing

Ths Roraniar: beesl legislation incl-des tha "anm's length® principle, Acording to whish intar-eompany
ransactizng zhould be petfommed 2t mackat value, Local tawpaiers that parform iNter-carpeny transacton:s
sReuld prepare and subolt tha fransfer pricing flie with the Romanizr: tax ahorities. LepilI 1 WTiHEN requesl
uf the laler, Fallure to submis the transfar pricing dacumentation file o S:basgion of an ‘nsomplee fie
may lead t penalilas for nar-carmpilatice; in additian to $Me coatears af tha ransfer pricing dacurmen latisn
iz, tha tax aushorites Imay interprat the fransactione and ciFeUmatancees in & manner differen; fan thet of
the Gompany and. 45 9 razul, they may detenrineg sdcithans| fizcat ohfigatans resulting from tensfer pricing
sdjustments. The GFreus managemert cansiders they will reet record Iosses i the c3se of g fiscal raview ot
tiangter pricing, Howsver, the impaci of & different intgrpretation from ke ms authoies cArnot ba ralighly
meatdra, |t cousdt be sigrificant far the Groap's fnancial pesliion end ¢ or Qperations.

Audiior feeg

During 2018, Ernet & Young Assurarse Soarvices 2RE bed 5 sl anhiractual fee of ELR 73,200 ifor the
statitory rudit of the separata and carsnlidgtad anrizar Angncai staiements of the Coinpany and the
Sparate audit of s subsidisnes and assacates), Tha eendces conbracted fram the stattory auditor, gikes
thar the audit 2arvizes, have amounisd to ELR 1,500, raprasenting fees far sarvices odar thap AZELrance,
which 3¢8 fict forbledan by Law 165/2917.

2. INVESTMENY SUBSIDIES

Investinant subeidan refar to neo-refundable funds felated w jnvestvenis mada iy Terastasl SA a_m:i
Bepaca SRL, malnly for praduction esuipment. Thare are no unfulfillac eonditions or other contiagencies
related 10 such gubzidias

2018 _ 2017

P HRON
As at 1 January .. 2828537 © 37391990
Depsan acquislton: 1,873,607 ) -
Transfared to profi and lose .. _ATEOBEI: (483447
At at 31 Decamber .. A0S 575 2820557
Current d53, TEA 457,314
Lorg-term 3,647,808 2,470,743

Az of 31 December 2014, the tatal value of the subsidias recorded waz of KON 8 951,575 raﬂngnlzed_as
defarred ingome 0 the balance shest ard transfarad o prafit &nd lozs on & systarietic and reasonabia
2825, duling the life of the melated azzoi,

Eaglisk ranalalon w far iafamatian pumozes Shily Favanan knguage tasl B Ihe affg:al Last fof submissian T
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MOTES TO THE CONMSOLIDATED FiMANCIAL STATEMENTS

tor the financial year ended 31 Dagembar 2048

[a¥ amount: ar sapreessd 6 Ransenian el CRON UIIES2 CITErLIeg aIals

33. FHARE-BASED PAYMENT

Luary 2042, the Carpany decided i im Faiment 3, stook compensation flan® vpe of ransuaragor thea uch
which hose smployzes haviac & =ignilizart cobibn'sn i tha reewts of 2175, will Be disirluted sharas
a5 0ar: of ke Geparzl Shars Satons Flan (EEF0;.

A5 8 resul of this decizizn, on & Fabruary 2018, e Company nos stares to raauTchase the own gtock 1o
be Lsed for -kis program.

I Mgy 2016, 7 parl of this pregrar was carded oot and 850,047 shares EMOundiag tz KON 495,520 ~aye
DESr B5Led e valde of the shares ot the PUrclrate crice being of RO 275 247 WRON 5T prise f sharz)

[4 February 20417, s FEpUICiase and tha swarding of the plan hares relzted ta 2016 roreling 1,189 055
2heres wWee f3zlized, the value of $e znares ar FUrchzse phoz balng RON 512,707, 10 Moverbar 2017,
througk BD decsinn, the comme neamant of o N Flack comparsation gar was approved, with a badges
of RON 1880 000, In 2017, na benafis weare grantad ir tie lorm of eharae to e Tereplzst erpEioyess
reiel ta this plan.

In Daceinber 2017, Tarazios! req!steres 8 provision aravnting b BON 5200060,

T Aepenoer 2048, e decision from Mevember 2047 Was amendod, the rumber of ‘edeemed skarss
and, raspeclively, the alacate] burgas being desreased jo ROM 1,480 308, In Decarmber 2018, Teraprasl
re]istured ROM 652 525 fearesanting benefits graated to the eniayees N tha form =f e shares in
TEELAZESA, whizk will ba settled ar 2 gubsequenl dats

34. SLBSEQUENT EVENTS

2on 7 Marsh 248, the Company has zonfractad 5 l=an acarting to RSN 14,483 278 fram Trens hunia
Ban= fior gfippatng the irvestmante i oommitad o wiilin tha Stats =4 sgheme jor stimudazing e
imvestingals with & majsr impact on i EPONIOMYy, for wh.eh Terspiast SA fecabad tha funtficg agraemart
ir November 2515,

G d March 2045 the Com pany 13s candractes a lcan ameunting to RGN 2054 744 fom Baroes de Sxpot
Impor: 4 Romame EximBank, to Sk-ppon L the investments iz cemmiitsd b roade within the St '] schame
bar stim:iating e investments nawng & majar mpactin (e econamy. for which Tarsgless Bistrita A fas
retaved the funding agreamen: in Novemaer 2018,

N 2 hiarck 2019, Depaco has cartractsd e 'can arounting to EUR 5 milion frarn the Eurcnean Sank ‘or
Recarstrachiar and Davelopment i arder to BUREOM the: ‘nvasitiznis it cormmittec fo within the State oic
sehems for stimulatng the irvestmants hawving & major impact in the BZONCMY, f2rwnicn Depacs 551 ko
received e funding agreamert n Navember 2043,

= Movember 7317, through $he Beard of Eractor'a dec!sion, the transfer of tha recycling ling Tor Taraplesl
S0 Anaiher Group COMpamy Was fecisad,

FaZied Lunwahon e fo: infarmalkion HLpoeGE Shly. Bams lan iangeaga wast is bz aP1218] cons far zubMission Ta N e
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BIOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the finaneial year onded 31 Dacember 2018

L amounls e exaregsed i Kamanian 2! PRONY, winleaz athenadze slabed)

34, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS {cantn ued)

To thiag effest, te Boars of Diraciors dasided 1o reinfegrase inta e parant the dogestic achviges whish, until
] Saptamber 201 8. were providad by Terpolast Logistic SAL, gt the sama time thanging the nama of the
ascva-mentionegd subgidlary Ink: Terapizst Racycling 84, the transfar of the rackzlng ackivity m this
O pEnY, changaig the egal forrm of the com parsy from & dmited hadity CAMEENY Lo 3 foint stock company,
ha sharehelding structura remaining wncharged 1060 sharshaiding Ta:aplast 54, 19 sharshoiding
Taraztes] Sa1,

L0121 Maich 2019, e Bistrita-Masawd Trade Ragizier Offica recordad the abgye-mentiznad amendments.
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